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a world where image Is everything,

etty Images continues to gain
momentum as it broadens its offering
to visual communications professionals
and expands into new markets.
In 2004, this momentum was felt across
the globe. From the Athens Olympics
to strategic acquisitions and expanded
creative collections, Getty Images
achieved record results and set the
stage for growth in 2005 and beyond.




Financial Highlights

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenue
Income from operations
Net income
Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted
Cash flow from operations
Capital expenditures
Cash and short-term investments
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$ 622,427 $ 523,196 3463,
$ 168,267 $ 103,269 Jorh;
$ 106,650 $ 64,017 < ox7ies
$ 181 $ 116 $ 040
$ 172 $ Ll $ 039
59,006 55,412 53,084
62,031 57,514 55,455
$ 202,582 $ 158,054 $ 105498
$ 36723 $ 35347 $ 39514
$ 520,710 $ 307,583 $ 116,803

To Our Stockholders:

As we begin our 10th year, we find ourselves in a world
where images increasingly are replacing words as the global
language of news and commerce. As a recent Financial
Times headline noted, “Image is everything in the attention
wars.” This story went on to talk about an up-and-coming
London advertising agency that has built its reputation on
replacing words with images, after finding that “a picture
really is worth a thousand words.” That simple reality plays
itself out every day, everywhere and in every medium.

The trends driving our business indicate expanding
opportunities on all fronts. The use of imagery in print
continues to grow, and broadband connectivity is reaching
critical mass, increasing demand for visual content on

the web. New imagery platforms, like mobiie phonés and
other hand-held devices, are creating previously unimagined
new markets for imagery. Photojournalism is undergoing

a renaissance, prompted by innovative, image-driven
storytelling. Finally, corporations are seeking new ways to
monetize and protect the value of their brands. These
trends suggest a bright future for Getty Images, validating
and informing our business mode! as we look to that future.



The Getty Images Mission:

To be the leading complete image solutions
company in each major market, offering
creative, publishing, media and corporate
professionals products (at all prices)

and related services on multiple platforms.

2004 was, by all measures, our most successful year to
date. It was difficult to miss Getty Images; our images were
on front covers of newspapers and magazines around the
globe, at the center of major marketing campaigns, and all
around us on television and in major feature films. Yet as
we ook back at the year, we are most proud of one simple
fact: we did what we committed to do by delivering as
promised against our key initiatives:

¢ We targeted an operating margin of 25 percent and
surpassed that objective, as revenues continued to grow
and selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A)
remained relatively flat.

* We said we would increase our penetration of the editorial
market: Our editorial business grew nearly 40 percent,
from 10 percent of our overall business to 12 percent,
or by more than $20 million.

* We set out to establish a major presence in Japan, the
world's second largest advertising market: We launched
the first fully localized e-commerce site in Japan,
added great, locally relevant images, built our team
and achieved our targets.

* We committed to building new revenue streams:
We took bold steps beyond the licensing of imagery
to offer image-related services, extending our proven
business model to new opportunities and further
cementing our relationships with customers. Our efforts
in assignment photography and asset management are
showing great promise.

Our performance in 2004 validates our strategy, speaks
to the strength of our management team and reinforces our
large and growing lead in the visual content industry.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS:
The Power of the Platform

All of our accomplishments this year point to one overriding
reality: the power of our platform. Gettyimages.com has
emerged as the home page for visual communicators,
photographers and, due to the success of our Image Partner
program, our competitors. Serving up 2.3 billion thumbnails
to 8.3 million visitors each month, gettyimages.com has
further cemented its position as the leading destination to
search, download, purchase, sell and manage imagery.

The site is backed by extraordinary customer support with
almost 700 sales consultants working around the clock,
around the world.

In 2004, we added nearly 30 new image partners, adding
locally relevant content for our customers and offering an
unparalleled distribution channel to other imagery providers.
This content, combined with all the services needed to
simplify the process of finding and licensing imagery,
makes gettyimages.com the de facto homepage for visual
communications professionals worldwide.




In our stock photography business, we saw solid volume
growth and continued pricing power. Innovations like
fiexible license packs and virtual CDs made it even easier
for customers to find and purchase exactly what they
needed on gettyimages.com. We enhanced rights-managed
(RM) content by adding new collections from image partners
and introducing Stone+, a brand-new collection of cutting-
edge creative photography. We also expanded another new
collection, Photographers Choice, and will continue to grow
it further in 2005. We created a special home page, the

RF Zone, for our value-conscious customers, making it much
easier for them to find and license high-quality, affordable
royalty-free imagery.

2004 was a banner year for our editorial business, from
the successful execution of the Olympic Games in Athens
(where we were the official photographic partner of the
international Olympic Committee), to Getty Images’
powerful position in global news reporting, covering the
gamut of wars, elections, scandals and natural disasters.
in 2004 we made gettyimages.com the first place photo
editors go for editorial content.

In 2004, we began aggressively working to extend our
global footprint and made significant inroads in Asia and
Europe, as well as in countries where we serve customers
through our delegate network. We assembled the most
highly respected editorial photography team in China, the
world’s second largest economy. Our delegate network,
operating in markets where we do not have a company-
owned Getty Images office, accounts for seven percent of
our business and grew more than 20 percent, supporting
our belief that much of the world remains under-penetrated
and hungry for imagery.

Opportunities outside our core business also flourished.
With the purchase of UK-based imagenet, we acquired

a proven platform on which to base our new digital asset
management offering, set to launch in 2005, and we
gained a valuable connection to the entertainment industry.
In addition, we grew our rights and clearances and

photo assignment services, key components of our strategy
to offer customers total image solutions.

EMPLOYEES, PHOTOGRAPHERS AND FILMMAKERS:

The Power Behind the Platform

Key to the success of Getty Images are the employees,
photographers and filmmakers who work tirelessly behind
the scenes. Inspired by leadership principles that guide
our actions, our employees and contributors are always
striving for the next innovation, yet retain a keen focus on
our near-term goals.

Award-winning photographers and filmmakers continue

to view Getty Images as the best place to grow creatively,
receive expert support and advance their careers. They
deliver inspiring and relevant imagery for our customers,
and sometimes literally risk their lives to tell important
stories. We give them the resources and freedom they need
to tell compelling stories with pictures rather than words—
a rare luxury in the traditional worlds of photojournalism
and assignment photography.

RECORD FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
Leveraging the Platform

Operational successes translated to record financial
performance in 2004, as Getty Images grew 19 percent
and added nearly $100 million in revenue. We produced
$168 million in operating income and achieved an
operating margin of 27 percent, surpassing our own
objective of 25 percent and putting us on track to achieve
our target of 30 percent in 2005. While delivering
revenue growth, we remained committed to focused and
strategic investments, resulting in relatively flat SG&A—
up only 2.4 percent over the prior year on a currency-neutral
basis—and capital spending.

LONG-TERM:
Extending our Business and the Platform

We have evolved beyond our founding strategy and our long-
term strategy combines our core strengths with visible

and attainable market opportunities. This strategy is based
on the very simple premise that we must provide what our
customers need, where they need it and how they need it.

WHAT OUR CUSTOMERS NEED. Communicators increasingly
require services to help them manage the complexities

of an image-rich world. This means providing image-
related services that help our customers work better and
smarter. We have made great strides in the service arena
in recent years with the launch of our photo assignment
business, rights services and our forays into digita!

asset management. In 2005, we will expand our digital
asset management offering as these services become an
increasingly important part of the marketing mix for
corporate and agency customers. Services represent more
than a revenue opportunity; they also deepen relationships
with our customers.



WHERE THEY NEED IT. While Getty Images is the world's
largest provider of imagery and image-related services,
we are not the largest or most influential in every market
we serve. We foresee continued gains in the corporate and
publishing segments, which have been growing at
double-digit rates. Outside English-speaking countries,
major growth is possible with local creative content
through image partners and our own creative operations.
We are only just getting started on the editorial front
outside the English-speaking countries where we began.

HOW THEY NEED IT. We will delight our customers with the
best service, completely reinventing and revolutionizing
gettyimages.com to optimize it for every customer.

This means taking search, personalization and service to
new levels.

Finally, our strategy means licensing imagery and services
to a new category of customers. Broadband connectivity

is finally available to the masses, driving imagery demands
on an increasing array of electronic media. More than

450 million individuals already subscribe to wireless
services, and an ever-increasing number of their devices
include color screens, built-in cameras and other tools

to record and view rich media. Over the coming years,

this will represent new markets, new customers and new
opportunities for distributing timely, compelling imagery.

2005:
Growing the Business and the Platform

As we celebrate our 10th anniversary year, we will
continue to focus on our customers, basing ail of

our strategic initiatives on the belief that an enhanced
customer experience will enable us to grow our share
of existing customers’ business, and gain market share—
in 2005 and beyond.

Qur first key initiative for 2005 is volume growth. With
ever-expanding content, more places for images to

be licensed, innovative ways of penetrating high-growth
opportunity segments such as corporate marketing
organizations and further geographical expansion, we
expect to increase volumes this year.

Second, we will accelerate international growth. With
continuing leadership in the English-speaking markets
(which we plan to extend), more locally relevant content
in markets outside these markets and strong footholds

in key European and Asian markets, Getty Images is poised
to continue its global growth trajectory.

Third, we will continue to grow our editorial imagery
business. Investments we made in recent years,

in the best photographers, support staff and technology,
situate us well for continued innovation and growth.

Fourth, though our customers tell us we already have
the best and easiest-to-use website for searching

and purchasing imagery, we are ready to take
gettyimages.com to the next level. This will include
improving and customizing the customer experience
while giving access to an even greater variety of imagery
with improved search capabilities.

In addition, we plan to achieve a 30 percent operating
margin, a year ahead of schedule. This is an important
milestone for Getty Images and a further validation of our
business mode! built on accelerated revenue growth
against a relatively fixed cost base. We are also committed
to driving earnings per share growth at 25 percent per
annum for the next few years.

Looking back at 2004 and forward to 2005—and beyond—
gives us good reason to celebrate. After 10 years, we

are more excited, positive and energized about what lies
ahead than ever before. We look forward to continuing

this momentum and to delivering much more in the years
to come as the power of imagery continues to influence
the way the world communicates.

MO g

Mark H. Getty
Co-founder and Chairman of the Board

Jonathan D. Klein
Co-founder and Chief Executive Officer

This tetter to stockhalders contains forward-looking statements. Please refer to the “Factors That
May Affect the Business” section of the enclosed Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of Getty Images,
Inc. We may, from time to time, make written or oral statements that are “forward-looking,” including statements contained in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, the documents incorporated herein by reference, and other documents filed with, and furnished to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission. These statements are based on management’s current expectations, assumptions and projections about Getty Images, Inc. and its
industry and are made on the basis of management’s views as of the time the statements are made. All statements, analyses and other
information contained in this report relative to trends in revenue, gross margin, anticipated expense levels and liquidity and capital resources, as
well as other statements including, but not limited to, words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “plan,” “estimate,” “expect,” “seek,” “intend” and
other simflar expressions, constitute forward-looking statements. These forward-fooking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict and that could cause our actual results to differ materially from our past
performance and management’s current expeclations, assumptions and projections. Differences may result from actions taken by us as well as
from risks and uncertainties beyond our control. Potential risks and uncertainties include, among others, those set forth herein under “Factors
That May Affect the Business,” as well as in Part ll, Item 7. “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.” Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation lo update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new
information, future developments or otherwise. Readers should carefully review the factors set forth in other reports or documents that we file
with, and furnish to, the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time.
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In this Annual Report, “Getty Images,” “the company,” “we,

the context otherwise dictates.

us,” and “our” refer to Getty Images, Inc. and its consofidated subsidiaries, unless

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT AND NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Overview

Getty Images, Inc. was founded in 1995 and is a leading provider of imagery and related services to businesses worldwide. We deliver
our products digitally via the Internet and CD-ROMs. We are headquartered in Seattle, Washington, with customers in more than 100
countries. Our products are sold through company-owned offices and a global network of delegates. We pioneered the solution to
aggregate and distribute visual content and, since 1995, have brought many of the visual content industry’s leading image collections
onto a single website, gettyimages.com.

We provide high quality, relevant imagery to: creative professionals at advertising agencies, graphic design firms, corporations and
film and broadcasting companies; editorial customers involved in newspaper, magazine, book, CD-ROM and online pubtlishing; and
corporate marketing departments and other business customers. By aggregating the content of our various teading imagery collections
on the Internet and partnering with other imagery providers, we offer a comprehensive and user-friendly solution for our customers’
imagery needs. Our goal is to be the leading, complete image solutions provider in every major market, offering visual communica-
tions professionals products and related services at muitiple price points on multiple platforms.

Products, Services and Customers

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We offer our customers a variety of visual content, including creative, or “stock” imagery (both still and moving images), editorial
photography (news, sports, entertainment and archival imagery), illustrations and related services. Imagery is offered to customers
through our creative photography collections (The /mage Bank, Photodisc, Photographer’s Choice, Reportage, Stone, Stone+ and
Taxi), our film collections (Archive Films, Image Bank Film and Photodisc) and Getty Images Editorial collections (news, sports, enter-
tainment imagery and Hulton/Archive), as well as the collections of other imagery providers (image partners), such as Digital Vision,
National Geographic and Time Life Pictures. We believe that by offering a selection of the highest quality images from other providers
of visual content, we enhance our ability to serve our customers and to generate additiona! revenue with minimal incremental cost. In
2004, we added nearly 30 new collections from other imagery partners to our website, including both creative and editorial imagery.
These products and services are offered through our website, CD-ROMs and our global network of delegates.

We also offer assignment services under which we handle all aspects of a custom photography project for a customer, such as photo-
graphing executives for an annual report, producing product shots for a brochure or documenting a news event. We use a global
network of experienced photographers on staff or on contract for assignment photography projects.
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CUSTOMERS

We serve a variety of customers in four major categories: creative customers (advertising and design agencies), editorial customers
(publishing and media companies), corporate customers (in-house advertising groups and corporate marketing departments) and film
customers (film and broadcast production companies). Due to the wide variety of customers and channels through which our prod-
ucts and services are sold, as well as their dispersion across many geographic areas, we are not dependent on & single customer or a
few customers, the loss of which would have a material adverse effect on us.

Creative Customers For our creative customers, we supply images that cover a wide variety of contemporary subjects including life-
style, business, science, health and beauty, sports, transportation and travel. These customers have a commercial or advertising
message they are trying to convey and, consequently, are typically looking for a specific conceptual image. Image relevance and
accessibility are important factors in the customer's decision. Advertising and design agency customers need to access imagery as
part of their everyday working lives.

Editorial Customers We supply images to a customer base of professionals who use imagery in the publication of newspapers, books
and magazines, both online and in traditional media. The imagery that is provided to these customers covers major political, news,
social and sporting events ranging from contemporary photographs to imagery from the beginning of photography in the early nine-
teenth century, These customers are looking for imagery that conveys information to illustrate the story they are covering (such as a
news, sports or entertainment event) and often require that the imagery be delivered during or immediately following the event. These
customers also license creative imagery.

Corporate Customers We offer a variety of imagery to corporate marketing departments and other business customers. These
customers require imagery for a wide range of business communication materials for internal and external use, including brochures,
employee communications, annual reports, newsletters, websites and presentations.

Film Customers We offer film (moving imagery) to customers engaged in producing commercial motion pictures, television
advertisements and programming, trade show and promotional videos, documentaries and other film-based media. These customers
require contemporary and archival film clips covering a broad range of topics, and they often use still imagery as well.

Sources and Availability of Content

The imagery we provide our customers is created by a substantial number of contributors, including photographers and filmmakers.
Therefore, we do not rely on any single or small group of contributors to meet our content needs.

CREATIVE

To develop our creative imagery collections, we have creative research and imagery teams in Tokyo, London, Los Angeles, Munich,
New York, Paris and Seattle that analyze customer requests and buying behavior and perform research in key markets in order to
target and source images. We have contractual relationships with contributing photographers, including highly respected, internation-
ally renowned professional photographers representing a variety of styles, specialties and backgrounds. In many cases, we provide on-
site art direction for our photographers, working with them on location around the world. We accepted approximately 30,000 new
images into our creative photography collections, plus over 100,000 images from partner collections in 2004. All new images
accepted into our collections are digitized, assigned keywords and posted on our website and are available for search, selection,
license and download 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

EDITORIAL

For editorial content, availability of imagery is time critical. To this end, we have picture desks (production hubs) in London, New York
and Sydney through which photographers may submit imagery at any time. We license editorial content produced by our staff photog-
raphers and by contributing photographers and other imagery providers with whom we have contractual relationships. We receive
thousands of digita! editorial images per week from our photographers around the world and make these available through our website
and through a wire service. By using digital technologies, we are able to make new images available online within minutes of
photographer transmission from major news, sports and entertainment events. In addition, we have made available on our website, a
core collection of archival imagery of interest to editorial customers. We identify upcoming events that will generate demand for partic-
ular archival images and we actively market the availability of those images to our editorial customers. We also offer in-depth research
services for our customers’ more extensive projects.
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FILM

For our film coliections, we maintain and license a growing library of commercially relevant cinematography covering a broad range of
contemporary and archival subjects. Qur film collections represent imagery from hundreds of filmmakers and film producers, and
each film clip is cataloged for quick access and retrieval in film, videotape and digital formats.

Marketing, Sales and Distribution

MARKETING

We reach our customers through diverse marketing campaigns including: our website (online marketing) and direct mail and e-mail
(direct marketing). These campaigns aim to build awareness for the Getty Images brand and promote the latest imagery and related
services available on gettyimages.com. We strive to provide relevant materials to our international markets by producing localized
marketing materials, including local language and locally applicable content, where appropriate.

Online Marketing Our website acts both as a marketing and sales tool, making the still and moving imagery of each collection avail-
able for search, selection, license and download online. For example, we often invite customers to view our latest creative imagery in
special “galleries” on our website. We also promote images available on CD-ROM and regularly provide a summary of the latest break-
ing stories in the editorial section of our website where customers can view, license and download available imagery.

Direct Marketing Direct mail and e-mail are part of our integrated marketing campaigns aimed at gaining new customers through
prospecting and at promoting our latest imagery, products and services to our existing customer base. Over the past three years, we
have shifted our marketing sirategy from an emphasis on printed catalogs to a focus on e-mail marketing and new forms of interactive
communications. We believe these forms are more cost-effective than printed catalogs, provide more opportunities for targeted market-
ing and better meet our customers’ needs.

SALES AND DISTRIBUTION

We license our imagery through company-operated offices and a global network of delegates, serving customers in more than 100
countries. A direct sales force and national accounts management team target high volume users of images, while our technical
support staff, who have expertise in digital image applications, design tools and photo manipulation methodologies, assist customers
in using our images.

We encourage our customers to take advaentage of the comprehensive image search capabilities of our website and digital delivery of
selected images. We believe the ability to search for, select, license and download images over the Internet offers our customers
advantages in terms of convenience, speed and cost efficiency, and enables us to achieve greater economies of scale. Direct commu-
nication with our customers, however, remains a significant component of our sales strategy. Our sales representatives assist custom-
ers in finding the images they need and keep them informed about our latest products and services.

Product Rights Customers may license rights to use single images, film clips or CD-ROM products containing multiple images. Cer-
tain types of images may be licensed on an exclusive basis for an additional fee. Customers may also ficense rights to our editoriat
images on a subscription basis. Ownership of imagery does not pass to customers who license the imagery, except when occasionally
customers purchase imagery outright.

Licensing Methods We group our image collections into three primary portfolios corresponding to our three main licensing methods:
1) rights-managed, including still and moving contemporary and archival imagery; 2) royalty-free, including still and moving imagery;
and 3) subscriptions, encompassing selected editorial imagery only (customers may alsc license editorial images on a single image
basis).

For rights-managed licensing, the license fee is based on how the image will be used, including geographical distribution, license
duration, media, exclusivity and circulation. For example, an image to be used as an eighth of a page photo in a brochure to be dis-
tributed in one city for three months will cost tess to license than an image to be used in a global advertising campaign for a year that
includes print advertising, billboards and point-of-purchase displays. For an additiona! fee, customers may also license exclusive
rights to an image in a particular geography or industry for a prescribed period of time. We also offer Flexible License Packs, which
provide customers a quick and cost effective way to license an image for multiple preset media without having to enter into separate
license agreements.



4 GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2004 FORM 10-K PART | ITEM 1

For royalty-free licensing, the license fee is based on the size of the digital file, from standard resolution (generally one megabyte) to
high resolution (generally 48 megabytes). Once the customer has licensed an image, that customer may use that image multiple times
for multiple projects without paying additional fees. Royalty-free images may be licensed on a single image basis or as part of a collec-
tion of images on a CD-ROM or virtual CD-ROM, an offering that allows customers online access to groups of royalty-free images for
one fee.

Subscription licensing is available only for selected editorial images. Under this licensing method, customers pay a periodic fee and
then may download as many of the selected editorial images as they need during the subscription period.

Operations and Technology

We employ a centralized and integrated technology platform as the foundation for our gettyimages.com website as well as our back-
office systems. This platform enables customers to search, select, license and download our digital content (including photographs,
film clips and illustrations) from one jocation, gettyimages.com. It also supports centralized sales order processing, customer database
management, finance and accounting systems. These systems span multiple operational activities, including customer interaction,
transaction processing, order fulfillment and invoicing.

In 2004, we improved our website offerings in several ways. We launched a Japanese language area of our creative website, our sixth
local language area, with regionally relevant imagery and focal currency e-commerce functionality. Qur five other local language areas
are U.S. English, U.K. English, French, German and Spanish. We also upgraded the user interface for our website in 2004, adding
e-commerce functionality for non-subscription editorial customers, improved navigation between the creative and editorial sections of
the site and added a one-step download and purchase process for frequent customers. In 2004, we created the Royalty-Free Zone on
gettyimages.com through which we license and market royalty-free imagery to those customers looking for a streamlined, value-priced
licensing process. We also added a number of new creative and editorial imagery collections to the site.

The technology architecture supporting gettyimages.com employs a set of software applications to: 1) categorize digital content and
embed appropriate keywords and search data; 2) search large information databases across languages and linguistic context; 3)
present detailed information related to specific digital content elements; 4) manage online e-commerce transactions for the license of
much of our digital content; 5) manage invoice generation and accounts receivable from customers; and 6) track a broad range of
intellectual property rights and permissions.

These services and systems use a combination of our proprietary technologies and commercially available licensed technologies. We
focus our internal development efforts on creating and enhancing the specialized proprietary software that is unique to our business.
We intend to continue to investigate, qualify and develop technology and internal systems that support key areas of our business to
enhance the online and offline experience of our customers. In particular, we have implemented and continue to develop a flexible
infrastructure that will facilitate the licensing and distribution of digital content from other imagery providers through our online
e-commerce systems.

Certain of our image search, image selection, rights management, customer interaction, order collection, fulfillment and back-office

systems are proprietary. These systems were designed tc provide reliable e-commerce connectivity and responsive online customer

interaction. Qur systems infrastructure is hosted internally as well as at an external hosting provider. Both internal and external host-
ing centers provide 24-hour monitoring, power generators and limited back-up systems.

Competition

The market for visual content and related services is highly competitive. We believe that the principal competitive factors are: name
recognition; company reputation; the quality, relevance, timeliness and diversity of the images in a company's collections; the quality
of contributing photographers, filmmakers and other imagery partners under contract with a company; effective use of current and
emerging technology; customer service; pricing policies and practices; and accessibility of imagery and speed and ease of search and
fulfilment. Some of our current and potential competitors include: other general visual content providers such as Corbis Corporation,
Jupitermedia Corporation, Amana Inc., Alamy Limited, Index Stock Imagery, Inc., Photographers Library UK Limited and Masterfile
Corporation; specialized visual content companies that are well established in their local, content or product-specific market segments
such as Reuters Group PLC, the Associated Press, Action images PLC, MediaVast, Inc. and ZUMA Press, Inc.; stock film foctage
companies such as Corbis Corporation; and commissioned photographers. There are also hundreds of small stock photography and
film footage agencies and image content aggregators throughout the world.
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Intellectual Property

Most of the images in our collections are cbtained from independent photographers and filmmakers on an exclusive basis. Pro-
fessional photographers and filmmakers prefer to retain ownership of their work. As a result, copyright to an image remains with the
contributing photographer or cinematographer in most cases, while we obtain the exclusive right to market the image on their behalf
for a period of time. A substantial portion of the images in our editorial (news, sports, entertainment and archival) collections and
certain images in our other collections are owned by us or are in the public domain.

We also own numerous trademarks that are important to our business. Depending on the jurisdiction, trademarks are valid as long as
they are in use and/or their registrations are properly maintained and they have not been found to have become generic. Registrations
of trademarks generally can be renewed indefinitely as long as the trademarks are in use. Please see “Factors That May Affect the
Business — We May Lose the Right to Use ‘Getty Images’ Trademarks in the Event We Experience a Change of Control” below for
more information about certain of our trademarks.

Factors That May Affect the Business

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO COMPETE EFFECTIVELY AGAINST COMPETITORS

The market for visual content and related services is highly competitive. We believe that the principal competitive factors are: name
recognition; company reputation; the quality, relevance, timeliness and diversity of the images in a company’s collections; the quality
of contributing photographers, filmmakers and other imagery partners under contract with a company; effective use of current and
emerging technology; customer service; pricing policies and practices; and accessibility of imagery and speed and ease of search and
fulfillment. Some of our existing and potential competitors may have or may develop products, services or technology superior to ours,
or other competitive advantages. If we are not able to compete effectively, or if a significant image partner were to terminate or fail to
renew an agreement with us, we could lose market share, which could have an adverse impact on our revenues and operating results.
See the listing of some of our current and potential competitors under “Competition” above.

QUR FINANCIAL RESULTS AND STOCK PRICE MAY FLUCTUATE

Our revenues and operating results are expected to vary from quarter to quarter due to a number of factors, both within and outside of
our control, including, but not timited to, the following:

s demand for our existing and new imagery and related services, and those of our competitors;
o changes in our pricing policies and practices;

s changes in the sales mix of our products and services, including the mix of licensed uses, company-owned versus contributor-
supplied imagery, and the geographic distribution of such licenses, each of which affect the price of a license and/or the royalty
we pay on the license;

o our ability to attract and retain customers;
e costs related to potential acquisitions and the development and/or use of technology, services or products;

e fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, changes in global capital markets and economic conditions, and changes to
applicable tax laws and regulations; and

¢ changes in estimates and assumptions made by management in preparing our financial statements, including those discussed in
the “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates and Assumptions” section of “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan-
cial Condition and Results of Operations” under Item 7 in Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Because of these risks and others, it is possible that our future results may differ from our expectations and the expectations of ana-
lysts and investors, causing our stock price to fluctuate.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN EXTERNAL FINANCING OR SERVICE OUR INDEBTEDNESS

White management currently anticipates that our current cash and cash equivalents and short-term investment balances and future
operating cash flows will be sufficient to meet our needs for working capital and capital expenditures for at least the next 12 months,
we could be required to obtain external financing should our financial results not meet management's expectations or should we need
additional funds to acquire selected businesses or otherwise achieve our objectives. In addition, our convertible subordinated
debentures require cash repayment of the $265.0 million of principal borrowed potentially at any time upon certain conditions and no
later than upon maturity in 2023. See discussion of the terms of these debentures in the “Financial Condition” section of
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” under ltem 7 in Part Il of this Annual
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Report on Form 10-K. Should we need to obtain external financing, through debt or equity, our ability to do so could be affected by
changes in U.S. and global capital markets and economies, significant fluctuations in interest rates, the price of our equity securities,
fluctuations in the results of our operations, and cther financial and business conditions, many of which are beyond our control. In
February of 2005, we cancelled our senior credit facility that would have expired-in July of 2005 and elected not to replace this
facitity.

WE MAY EXPERIENCE SYSTEM AND SERVICE DISRUPTIONS AND DIFFICULTIES

The digitization and Internet distribution of our visual content is a key component of our business, which involves operations in multi-
ple countries using multiple localized versions of our website all of which use a common technology platform. As a result, we are par-
ticularly dependent upon the efficient functioning of our website (and the technology behind it} to allow our customers to access and
conduct transactions through our website. We will continue to update and upgrade our website and its underlying technology. We
cannot guarantee that these upgrades will work as desired or will not result in system or service disruptions or difficulties.

In the past, we have experienced infrequent and brief system interruptions that made portions of our website unavailable or prevented
us from efficiently taking, processing or fulfilling orders. We also have experienced infrequent difficulties with system updates and
upgrades (including those to our website). We cannot guarantee that we can prevent future interruptions or difficulties. Additionally,
we depend on certain third party software and system providers for the processing and distribution of our imagery and related serv-
ices. System disruptions and difficulties, whether as a result of our internally developed systems or those of the third-party providers,
may inconvenience our customers and/or result in negative publicity, and may negatively affect our provision of services and the
volume of images we license and deliver over the Internet.

We have focused significant resources and attention on the installation and development of systems for technology, business proc-
esses, sales and marketing systems, finance and royalty systems, customer interfaces, and other corporate administrative functions,
which we depend on to manage and contral our operations. We will need to continue to improve these systems and their efficiencies
as well as our network infrastructure to accommodate increased traffic on our website, sales volume, and the processing of the result-
ing information. If we do not do so, or if we experience disruptions or difficuities as a result of any such improvements, we may face
system interruptions, poor response times, diminished customer service, impaired quality and speed of order fulfillment, and potential
problems with our internal controls over financial reporting.

Additionally, the computer and communications hardware necessary to operate our corporate functions are located in metropolitan
areas worldwide. Any of these systems and operations could be damaged or interrupted by fire, flood, power loss, telecommunications
failure, earthquake and similar events. We do not have complete redundancy for all of our network and telecommunications facilities.

SYSTEMS SECURITY RISKS AND CONCERNS MAY HARM OUR BUSINESS

An important component of our business is the secure transmission of confidential information and the transaction of commerce over the Inter-
net. Developments in computer capabilities, viruses, or other events could result in compromises or breaches of our systems or those of other
websites and networks, jeopardizing proprietary and confidential information belonging to us or our customers, or causing potentially serious
interruptions in our services, sales or operations. We continue to expend significant resources to protect against the threat of security breaches or
to alleviate problems caused by such breaches. Any well-publicized compromises of our security system or the internet may reduce our custom-
ers’ desire to transact business over the Internet.

CERTAIN OF OUR STOCKHOLDERS CAN EXERCISE SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE OVER OUR BUSINESS AND AFFAIRS

Some of our stockholders own substantial percentages of the outstanding shares of our common stock. Getty Investments L.L.C.; The
October 1993 Trust; The JD Klein Family Settlement; Mr. Mark H. Getty, our Chairman; and Mr. Jonathan D. Kiein, our Chief Execu-
tive Officer, collectively the Getty Group, owned approximately 17% of the outstanding shares of our common stock at December 31,
2004. Getty Investments alone owned approximately 16% of the outstanding shares of our common stock at December 31, 2004. Mr.
Getty serves as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Getty Investments, and Mr. Klein serves on the Board of Directors of Getty
Investments.

As a result of their share ownership, the Getty Group has significant influence over all matters requiring approval of our stockholders,
including the election of directors and the approval of business combinations. The substantial percentage of our commeon stock held
by the Getty Group could also make us a less attractive acquisition candidate or have the effect of delaying or preventing a third party
from acquiring control over us at a premium over the then-current price of our common stock. In addition to ownership of our com-
mon stock, Mr. Getty's role as the Chairman of our Board of Directors, and Mr. Klein's role as Chief Executive Officer and as a mem-
ber of our Board of Directors, increase the Getty Group’s influence over us.
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WE MAY LOSE THE RIGHT TO USE “GETTY IMAGES” TRADEMARKS IN THE EVENT WE EXPERIENCE A CHANGE OF CONTROL

We own trademarks and trademark applications for the name “Getty Images.” We use “Getty Images” as a corporate identity, as do
certain of our subsidiaries, and we use “Getty Images” as a product and service brand, We refer to these trademarks and trademark
applications as the Getty Images Trademarks. In the event that a third party or parties not affiliated with the Getty family acquires
control of Getty images, Getty Investments L.L.C. has the right to call for an assignment to it, for a nominal sum, all rights to the
Getty Images Trademarks. In the event of an assignment, we will have 12 months to continue to use the Getty Images Trademarks,
after which time we no longer would have the right to use them. Getty Investments' right to cause such an assignment might have a
negative impact on the amount of consideration that a potential acquirer would be willing to pay to acquire our common stock.

AN INCREASE IN GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND E-COMMERCE COULD HAVE A NEGATIVE IMPACT ON OUR BUSINESS

We are subject to @ number of laws and regulations directly applicable to e-commerce. State, federal and foreign governments have
adopted, and may continue to adopt, legislation regulating the Internet and e-commerce. Such regulation could both increase our cost
of doing business and impede the growth of our business or of the Internet, while decreasing the Internet’s acceptance or effective-
ness as a communications and commerce medium.

Existing or future laws and other regulations that may impact our business include, but are not limited to, those that govern or restrict:
© privacy issues and data collection, processing, retention and transmission;
o pricing and taxation of goods and services offered over the Internet;
o website content, or the manner in which products and services may be offered and/or marketed over the Internet; and
o sources of liability for companies involved in Internet services or e-commerce.

CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF OUR CORPORATE DOCUMENTS AND DELAWARE CORPORATE LAW MAY DETER A THIRD PARTY FROM ACQUIRING US

Our Board of Directors has the authority to issue up to five million shares of preferred stock and to fix the rights, preferences, priv-
ileges and restrictions of such shares without any further vote, approval or action by our stockholders. This authority, together with
certain provisions of our restated certificate of incorporation, may have the effect of making it more difficult for a third party to
acquire, or of discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire, control of us. This could occur even if our stockholders consider
such change in control to be in their best interests. In addition, the concentration of beneficial ownership of our common stock in the
Getty Group, along with certain provisions of Delaware law, may have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a takeover of us.

Relationship with Our Employees

At December 31, 2004, we had 1,738 employees (excluding those on leave). Of these, 936 were located in the Americas, 682 in
Europe and 120 in the rest of the world. We believe that we have satisfactory relations with our employees.

Compliance with Federal, State and Local Environmental Provisions

All of our facilities are subject to environmental laws and regulations. Compliance with these provisions has not had, and management
does not expect such compliance to have, any material adverse effect on our capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

We operate the company as one business segment. Our revenue is generated through a diverse customer base, and there is no reli-
ance on a single customer or small group of customers; no customer represented 10% or more of our total revenue in the periods
presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The geographic information required herein is contained in Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements “Business Segments
and Geographic Areas” in Part IV, Item 15(A) of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference herein.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We file reports with, and furnish reports to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K. We maintain an Internet site, http://www.gettyimages.com, where
we make these reports and related amendments available free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically
deliver such material to the SEC. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct, Code of Ethics, and charters for
the Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees are available in the Corporate Governance section
of gettyimages.com. The Guidelines, codes and charters are also available in print to any stockholder on request. Please write to
Investor Relations Department, Getty Images, Inc., 601 North 34th Street, Seattle, Washington 98103, Our website and the
information contained therein or connected thereto are not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices and worldwide headquarters are located in Seattle, Washington. We alsc have a significant presence in
New York, New York and London, England. The data included herein is as of December 31, 2004.

In Seattle, we lease approximately 180,300 square feet of office space under two leases that expire in August of 2013. Approximately
6,500 square feet of the total leased space has been identified as excess, all of which is currently subleased.

In New York, we lease approximately 246,500 square feet of office space under three leases, which expire in March of 2015. Approx-
imately 145,800 square feet of the total leased space has been identified as excess, all of which is currently subleased.

In London, we lease approximately 73,200 square feet of office space under six leases. Leases covering approximately 3,700 square
feet, 23,200 square feet, 2,100 square feet, 9,800 square feet, 14,400 square feet and 20,000 square feet expire in June of 2010,
October of 2010, January of 2014, March of 2014, October of 2015 and September of 2016, respectively. All of the space in London
is currently used for our operations. However, by the end of the first quarter of 2005, we expect to vacate the 9,800 square foot prop-
erty expiring in March of 2014, which we are attempting to sublease.

We also lease approximately 176,300 square feet of office space in key business centers in other cities around the world. Approx-
imately 48,200 square feet of this space is identified as excess, of which approximately 19,500 square feet is currently subleased.

Our existing facilities are adequate and appropriate for our operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We have been, and may continue to be, subject to legal claims from time to time in the ordinary course of our business, including
those related to alleged infringements of the intellectual property rights of third parties, such as the failure to secure model or property
releases for imagery we license. Claims may also include those brought by photographers and filmmakers relating to our handling of
images submitted to us or to the companies we have acquired. We have accrued a liability for the anticipated costs of defending,
adjudicating or settling claims for which we believe a loss is probable. There are no pending legal proceedings to which we are a party
or to which any of our property is subject that, either individually or in the aggregate, are expected to have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to a vote of our stockholders, through solicitation of proxies or otherwise, during the fourth quarter of fiscal
year 2004.
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PART 1l

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “GYI.” The following table sets forth, for each

of the quarterly periods indicated, the high and low sale prices of our common stock as reported on the NYSE:

High Low

Year ended December 31, 2004
First quarter $ 5426 $ 47.15
Second quarter 60.09 51.65
Third quarter 60.48 50.28
Fourth quarter 70.30 52.39

Year ended December 31, 2003
First quarter ] $ 3229 $ 25.80
Second quarter 41.39 26.75
Third quarter 43.60 31.95
Fourth quarter 51.00 35.59

On March 1, 2C05, the closing market price of our common stock as reported on the NYSE was $71.83 per share.

Holders

There were approximately 88 holders of record of our common stock on March 1, 2005.

Dividends

We have not paid or declared any dividends on our common stock since our inception. The payment of any future dividends will be at
the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on, among other things, future earnings, the success of our business activ-
ities, regulatory and capital requirements, our general financial condition and general business conditions. Our Board of Directors

does not expect to declare cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

Unregistered Securities

We did not issue any unregistered securities during the fourth quarter of 2004.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

PART 1! ITEM 6

The following selected consolidated financial data is qualtified by reference to, and should be read in conjunction with, our Con-
solidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included in Part IV, Item 15(A), and the section entitled “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in Part Il, Item 7, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Histor-
ical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected in the future.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share amounts and ratios)
Consolidated Statement of Income Data
Revenue $ 622,427 $ 523,196 $ 463,011 $ 450,985 $ 484,846
Income (loss) before income taxes 174,039 87,716 36,087 (98,662) (164,151)
Net income (loss) 106,650 64,017 21,468 (95,312) (169,334)
Net income (loss) per share
Basic $ 181 §% 1.16 § 040 $ (1.84) % (3.40)
Diluted 1.72 1.11 0.39 (1.84) (3.40)
Shares used in computing per share amounts
Basic 59,006 55,412 53,084 51,723 49,708
Diluted 62,031 57,514 55,455 51,723 49,708
Other Operating Data
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges! 18.4 6.5 2.7 — —
Deficiency of earnings to fixed charges? 3 — 3 — % — $ 98662 $ 164,151
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Total assets $ 1,451,584 $ 1,224084 $ 1,025,055 $ 993,081 $ 1,100,636
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 265,000 265,011 244,739 256,215 274,427

I Ratio of earnings to fixed charges means the ratio of income before fixed charges and income taxes to fixed charges, where fixed charges are
the aggregate of interest expense, including amortization of debt issuance costs, and an allocation of rental charges to approximate equiv-

alent interest.

2 Due to net losses incurred in 2001 and 2000, the ratio of earnings to fixed charges in those years was less than 1:1. We would have had to
generate additional earnings in the amounts indicated in the table to have achieved a ratio of 1:1.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS (MD&A) ‘

The following should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included in Part IV, Item 15(A),
Part |, ftem 1. “Business,” and Part i, ltem 6. “Selected Consolidated Financial Data,” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

GENERAL

We are a leading provider of high quality, relevant imagery and related services to creative professionals at advertising agencies,
graphic design firms, corporations, and film and broadcasting companies; editorial customers involved in newspaper, magazine, book,
CD-ROM and online publishing; and corporate marketing departments and other business customers.

Revenue

We generate our revenue from licensing rights to use imagery and from providing related services. Revenue is principally derived from
a large number of relatively small transactions involving licensing rights to use single still (non-moving) images, fiim clips or CD-ROM
products containing multiple images. We also generate revenue from subscription agreements for image licenses.

STILL IMAGERY

The majority of the still imagery that we license is broken down into three portfolios: rights-managed, royalty-free, and editorial.
Rights-managed images are licensed by customers on a use-by-use basis and generally have higher license fees based on the
intended use of the image, including type of media, geographicail distribution, license duration, circulation and level of exclusivity.

Royalty-free images can be used by customers for multiple projects over an unlimited time period. License fees for royalty-free
CD-ROM products are generally the same for each licensee, while license fees for single royalty-free images differ depending on the
size of the digital file, from standard resolution (generally one megabyte) to high resolution (generally 48 megabytes).

Editorial imagery consists of news, sports, entertainment and archival imagery, and is licensed on & single image or subscription
basis.

FiLM

We also maintain a portfolio of film, or moving imagery, clips that we license on a rights-managed or royalty-free basis. License fees
for rights-managed and royalty-free film clips are based on the same factors as license fees for images within the respective still
imagery portfolios.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales on images licensed to our customers consists primarily of commissions owed to contributors, comprised of photogra-
phers, filmmakers and other imagery partners. These contributors are under contract with us and typically receive commissions of
20% to 50% of the total license fee, depending on the portfolic (as discussed above) and where the imagery is licensed (licenses
outside a contributor's home territory result in lower commissions). We own a significant number of the images in our collections, and
these images do not require commission payments.

In addition to being licensed directly by us, our imagery is also licensed through delegates worldwide. Licenses through delegates
comprised approximately 6% of our revenue in 2004. Delegates typically earn and retain 35% to 40% of the license fee, and we
recognize the remaining 60% to 65% as revenue. Commissions paid to contributors on delegate revenue are 30% of the total license
fee.

Acquisitions of Businesses

During the third quarter of 2004, we acquired Imagenet Limited, a United Kingdom-based distributor of digital publicity and marketing
materials to media companies, for a purchase price (including liabilities assumed) of £13.9 million (approximately $25.2 miilion). The
portion of the purchase price allocated to goodwill was £10.6 million {(approximately $19.2 million). During 2004, 2003 and 2002, we
acquired several other small businesses, mainly editorial photography businesses to expand our editorial offerings in order to meet
growing demand for this type of imagery.



12 GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2004 FORM 10-K PART Il ITEM 7

All acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the results of operations since the
respective dates of acquisition are included in our consolidated results. None of the acquisitions were material, individually or in the
aggregate, to the company as a whole and, therefore, pro forma financial information is not presented.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In 2004, our overriding objective was to grow revenue, primarily through increased focus on a sales and marketing approach targeted
to the specific product and pricing needs of various customer groups. We expanded our editorial business in 2004, photographing the
Olympic Games in Athens and assembling an editorial photography team in China. We also launched a Japanese language area of our
website with localized creative imagery and local currency payment processing. In addition, in 2004, we expanded our photo assign-
ment offerings and other service offerings.

Below are selected financial highlights from our results of operations. All figures in the tables are shown in thousands, except percen-
tages and price per image figures. Income from operations and operating margin should not be considered alternatives to net income
as indicators of our operating performance, but should be considered supplemental indicators.

2004 Results of Operations Compared to 2003 Results of Operations

Following are key revenue and gross margin metrics for 2004 and 2003:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003

PORTFOLIO REVENUE AS A PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL REVENUE

Rights-managed still imagery 48% 52%
Royalty-free still imagery 33% 31%
Editorial imagery 12% 10%
Film 5% 6%
Other 2% 1%

GROSS MARGIN BY PORTFOLIO

Rights-managed still imagery 67% 66%
Royalty-free still imagery 76% 78%
Editorial imagery 82% 82%
Film 72% 72%

APPROXIMATE AVERAGE PRICE PER IMAGE BY PORTFOLIO 1.2

Rights-managed still imagery 3 $ 590 $ 560
Royalty-free still imagery 3 200 150
Film 4 630 615

1 Because many editorial images are licensed on a subscription basis, price per image is not meaningful and therefore is not included in this
table.

2 Alt price per image figures are rounded to the nearest $5 and represent the approximate prices of single images (including flexible license
packs but excluding prepackaged CDs) licensed by us directly to our customers, not through delegates.

3 These figures relate to images licensed in the Americas, Europe, Middle East and Africa only.

4 These figures relate to rights-managed moving imagery licensed in North America, Europe, Middle East and Africa only.
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REVENUE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2004 % of revenue 2003 % of revenue $ change % change
Revenue $ 622,427 100.0 $ 523,196 100.0 $ 99,231 19.0

Revenue benefited $32.8 million year over year from the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on the translation of
revenue generated in foreign countries, mainly the United Kingdom (U.K.) and countries whose currency is the euro. Excluding these
changes in exchange rates, revenue increased 12.7% year over year due mainly to pricing, including selective price increases,
reduced levels of discounting for certain uses of rights-managed imagery and a shift in the mix of images licensed within our royalty-
free portfolio towards higher priced imagery. Our editorial imagery portfolio also contributed significantly to year over year revenue
growth, due mainly to increases in the volume of images licensed from this portfolio. We also saw growth in the volume of images
licensed from our rights-managed imagery portfolio during the year, partially offset in the first half of the year by decreases in the
volume of single royalty-free images licensed by customers who pay with a credit card. Revenue increased year over year in many
countries, with the most significant dollar increases seen in the U.S. and the U.K. Japan also showed significant growth on a percent-
age basis, due primarily to the launch of the Japanese language area of our website.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OYER YEAR
2004 % of revenue 2003 % of revenue $ change % change
Gross profit and gross margin $ 449,743 723 % 374,853 71.6 $ 74,890 20.0

Gross profit and gross margin increased year over year due to increased revenue and a shift in image license mix towards higher
margin imagery, including royalty-free and editorial imagery and imagery licensed outside of the home territory of the contributor.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (SG&A)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2004 % of revenue 2003 % of revenue $ change % change
SG&A $ 225,128 36.1 $ 210,011 40.1 $ 15,117 7.2

SG&A increased $15.1 million year over year primarily due to 2 net $10.0 million negative impact of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates on the translation of SG&A incurred in foreign countries and approximately $1.5 million in fees incurred on the
exchange of our convertible subordinated debentures. See the discussion of the exchange of our convertible subordinated debentures
under “Liquidity” within “Financial Condition” below.

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS AND OPERATING MARGIN

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OYER YEAR
2004 % of revenue 2003 % of revenue $ change % change
Income from operations and operating margin ~ $ 168,267 27.0 % 103,269 197 $ 64,998 62.9

Income from operations and operating margin increased in 2004 primarily due to higher revenue and gross margin, both of which are
discussed above, as compared to operating expenses that did not increase proportionally.
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INTEREST EXPENSE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2004 % of revenue 2003 % of revenue $ change % change
Interest expense 3 (3,828) (0.6) $ (9,765) (19) $ 5,937 60.8

Interest expense decreased from 2003 due principally to the issuance of 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures and repayment of
our 5.0% convertible subordinated notes in June and July of 2003, respectively. Interest expense on the new 0.5% convertible sub-
ordinated debentures approximates $1.3 million per year, compared to interest expense on the extinguished 5.0% convertible sub-
ordinated notes that approximated $12.5 million per year. Interest expense also includes amortization of debt issuance costs and fees
on the unused portion of our senior credit facility, which were relatively consistent year over year.

INVESTMENT INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2004 % of revenue 2003 % of revenue $ change % change
Investment income $ 9,133 15 $ 3,847 0.7 $ 5,286 137.4

Investment income increased in 2004 primarily due to higher cash and cash equivalent and short-term investment balances, com-
bined with an increase in interest rates.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
% of income % of income
before income before income
2004 taxes 2003 taxes $ change % change
Income tax expense $ (67,389) (38.7) % (23,699) (27.0) $ (43,690) (184.4)

Income tax expense increased over the prior year due to higher income before income taxes and a $10.2 million deferred tax asset
valuation allowance that was reversed through income tax expense in 2003. The effective tax rates were 38.7% and 27.0% in 2004
and 2003, respectively. The increase in the effective tax rate for 2004 compared to 2003 was due to the valuaticn allowance reversal
in 2003. Excluding this reversal, the effective rate in 2003 would also have been 38.7%.

2003 Results of Operations Compared to 2002 Results of Operations

REVENUE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2003 % of revenue 2002 % of revenue $ change % change
Revenue $ 523,196 100.0 $ 463,011 100.0 $ 60,185 13.0

Revenue increased year over year due to:
* a $29.7 million positive impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on the translation of revenue generated in foreign countries,
mainly countries whose currency is the euro and the U.K;
¢ pricing, including selective price increases {most significantly within our royalty-free portfolio), reduced levels of discounting and a shift in
the mix of licensed uses towards higher priced uses; and
¢ the introduction of additional image collections from other imagery partners to the gettyimages.com website and increases in the volume of
licenses of previously introduced imagery from other imagery partners.
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Partially offsetting these increases were declines in the volume of images licensed in certain Getty Images collections.

Excluding the impact of foreign-currency translation, revenue increased year over year in multiple geographical areas, particularly the
U.S., Canada and several European countries. Revenue increased year over year across most image collections due to the same fac-
tors as overall revenue growth.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2003 % of revenue 2002 % of revenue $ change % change
Gross profit and gross margin $ 374,853 716 $ 334,931 72.3 $ 39,922 11.9

Despite an increase in our gross profit year over year, gross margin declined in 2003 due to an increase in licenses of imagery from
other imagery partners within all portfolios, offset in part by a shift in revenue mix from fower margin rights-managed imagery to
higher margin royalty-free imagery.

AMORTIZATION

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2003 % of revenue 2002 % of revenue $ change % change
Amortization $ 4,052 0.8 $ 14,999 3.2 $ (10,947) (73.0)

Amortization decreased year over year mainly due to the cessation of catalog amortization, which was $9.6 million for 2002. Catalog
production costs are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses upon initial distribution of each catalog effective
October 1, 2001, and all deferred catalog costs were fully amortized by September 30, 2002.

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS AND OPERATING MARGIN

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2003 % of revenue 2002 % of revenue $ change % change
Income from operations and operating margin ~ $ 103,269 19.7 $ 49,425 10.7 $ 53,844 108.9

Income from operations and operating margin increased in 2003 due mainly to higher revenue and the cessation of catalog amor-
tization, offset in part by lower gross margin, all of which are discussed in detail above.

DEBT EXTINGUISHMENT COSTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2003 % of revenue 2002 % of revenue $ change % change
Debt extinguishment costs $ (11,777) (2.3) $ — — $ (11,777) (100.0)

On July 10, 2003, the net proceeds from the issuance of our 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures and other funds were used to
redeem our 5.0% convertible subordinated notes, for $261.1 million in cash, including $250.0 million of principal, $7.1 million of cail
premium and $4.0 million of accrued interest. In addition, we wrote off $4.6 million of unamortized debt issuance costs associated
with these notes. The cail premium and unamortized debt issuance costs comprise debt extinguishment costs.
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INTEREST EXPENSE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2003 % of revenue 2002 % of revenue $ change % change
Interest expense $ (9,765) (1.9) $ (15,364) (3.3) $ 5,599 36.4

Interest expense decreased from 2002 principally due to the repayment of our 5.0% convertible subordinated notes and issuance of
0.5% convertible subordinated debentures in July and June of 2003, respectively. Interest expense on the new 0.5% convertible
subordinated debentures will approximate $1.3 million per year, compared to interest expense on the extinguished 5.0% convertible
subordinated notes that approximated $12.5 million per year.

INVESTMENT INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
2003 % of revenue 2002 % of revenue $ change % change
Investment income $ 3847 7 % 1,581 0.3 $ 2,266 143.3

Investment income increased in 2003 due to higher cash and cash equivalent and short-term investment balances, offset in part by a
decrease in interest rates.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER YEAR
% of income % of income
before income before income
2003 taxes 2002 taxes $ change % change
Income tax expense $ (23,699) (27.0) $ (14,619 (40.5) $ (9,080) (62.1)

Income tax expense increased over the prior year due to higher income before income taxes, offset in part by the reversal of $10.2
million of our deferred tax asset valuation allowance through a credit to income tax expense. The effective tax rates were 27.0% and
40.5% in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2003 was due mainly to the valuation allowance
reversal through income tax expense and to a lesser extent was due to increased book income compared to permanent differences,
principally non-deductible expenses, which did not increase proportionately.

Results of Operations Outiook

Many of the statements herein and for the remainder of the MD&A are “forward-looking” and are based on management’s current
expectations, assumptions and projections about Getty Images, Inc. and its industry and are made on the basis of management’s
views as of the date this document is filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). These forward-looking statements are
not guarantees of future performance and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict and that could
cause our actual results to differ materially from our past performance and management’s current expectations, assumptions and
projections. Differences may result from actions taken by us as welf as from risks and uncertainties beyond our control. Potential risks
and uncertainties include, among others, those specifically set forth in this section and those under “Factors That May Affect the
Business” in Part I, Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Except as required by law, we underiake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise. Readers should carefully review
all documents that we file with, and furnish, to the SEC, as we will periodically update these forward-looking statements through these
documents. Therefore, these forward-looking statements should not be considered current beyond the date this document is filed with
the SEC unless read in conjunction with all of our documents filed with, and furnished to, the SEC thereafter.

As we enter our 10th year of business, we cantinue to focus on our customers, basing all of our strategic initiatives on the belief that
an enhanced customer experience will enable us to grow revenue in 2005 and beyond. Our key initiatives for 2005 are to: grow the
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volume of imagery licensed; accelerate international growth; continue to grow the editorial portion of our business; improve and cus-
tomize the customer experience and search capabilities on gettyimages.com; and achieve a 30% operating margin. With further
respect to 2005 operating results, management expects the company to report: double digit revenue growth at a rate slightly higher
than in 2004 (excluding the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates); overall gross margin of approximately 72%, con-
sistent with 2004; a moderate increase in selling, general and administrative expenses; and a significant decline in depreciation
expense due to decreased capital expenditures in recent years. Management also expects an effective income tax rate for 2005 sim-
ilar to that of 2004 and 2003 (excluding the valuation allowance reversal in 2003). These expectations do not include the impact of
expensing stock-based employee compensation upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R),
“Share-Based Payment" or the effect of material acquisitions of businesses, if any. See discussion of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)
under “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” below.

Our ability to meet our 2005 objectives is subject to many risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not
limited to, our ability to: generate interest in our products and services through communication with customers; provide product offer-
ings at price points that address users of lower priced imagery and that are relevant and desirable in international markets; success-
fully develop and market new service offerings that complement our existing products and services; achieve our forecasted mix of
revenue between rights-managed and royalty-free imagery, between wholly-owned imagery and imagery provided by contributors, and
between higher priced and lower priced uses of rights-managed imagery; and maintain our website advantage over those of cur
competitors, including developing and implementing improved search technaology. Meeting our 2005 objectives is also subject to the
general risks discussed in Part |, Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under “Factors That May Affect the Business.”

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Liquidity
DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003

(In thousands, except current ratio)

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 520,710 $ 307,583
Working capital (current assets less current liabilities) $ 518,082 $ 292,426
Current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) 5.55 3.54

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by operating activities was $202.6 million, $158.1 million and $105.5 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The increase in operating cash flows from year to year resulted mainly from increased revenue collected (increased
revenue and lower days sales outstanding), compared to operating expenses that declined from 2002 to 2003 and remained relatively
flat in 2004. Management expects cash flows from operating activities to continue to increase in 2005, due mainly to an increase in
revenue collected without proportional increases in cash operating expenses.

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by financing activities was $72.6 million, $70.8 miltion and $3.1 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The increase in cash provided by financing activities from 2003 to 2004 resuited from higher proceeds from the issuance of stock
through employee stock option exercises. The significant increase in cash provided by financing activities from 2002 to 2003 also
resulted mainly from a significant increase in proceeds from the issuance of stock through employee stock option exercises, as well as
from a net $20.0 million repayment of debt in 2002. Management expects cash flows provided by financing activities in 2005 to con-
sist mainly of proceeds from the issuance of stock through employee stock option exercises. Stock option exercises typically increase
or decrease relative to changes in our stock price. Approximately 3.2 million stock options were exercisable at December 31, 2004
with a weighted-average exercise price of $26.44.

We expect that our current cash and cash equivalent and short-term investment balances plus cash generated through future operat-
ing and financing activities will meet our liquidity needs for at least the next 12 months. Our ability to generate cash flows for 2005 in
line with management’s expectations is subject to many risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to: all of the risks outlined
above for meeting our 2005 objectives; increased days sales outstanding due to revenue growth in foreign countries with longer stan-
dard payment terms or due to delays in customer payments; significant unexpected cash operating expenses; significant changes in
interest rates or income tax laws; a significant decline in the market price of our common stock; and the general risks discussed in
Part |, Item 1 of this Annua! Report on Form 10-K under “Factors That May Affect the Business.”
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Senior Credit Facility In February of 2005, we cancelled our senior credit facility that would have expired in July of 2005. It is antici-
pated that we will be able to satisfy our cash requirements through internally generated cash and therefore elected not to replace this
facility.

Convertible Subordinated Debentures 0On June 9, 2003, we issued $265.0 million in 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures
(original debentures) in a private placement. On December 16, 2004, we completed an exchange of all but $2.0 million of these origi-
nal debentures for new 0.5% Series B convertible subordinated debentures (new debentures). We determined this exchange to be a
non-taxable transaction, Management expects the remaining $2.0 million in original debentures to be exchanged for new debentures
in the second quarter of 2005.

Key terms and conditions of the new debentures are:

e The principal portion of the debentures is required to be settled in cash, while the increase in value of the debentures beyond the principal,
if any, is payable in shares of our common stock. Prior to June 9, 2008, if the applicable stock price is less than or equal to the base con-
version price of $61.08, no common shares would be issued upon conversion. if the applicable stock price is greater than the base con-
version price, common shares would be issued upon conversion based on a conversion rate calculated in accordance with a pre-
determined formula. On or after June 9, 2008, the conversion rate will be fixed for the remainder of the term of the debentures at the
conversion rate effective on the date that is based on the eight trading days prior to June 9, 2008.

* The debentures may be converted at the holder's option only under any of the following conditions: 1) the closing price of our common
stock during a relevant measurement period as defined in the indenture is more than 120% of the base conversion price (120% of $61.08,
or $73.30); 2) the credit rating assigned to the debentures by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services is below B- or by Moody’s Investors Serv-
ice is below B3 (the ratings were B and B2, respectively, at December 31, 2004); 3) the trading price of the debenture during a relevant
measurement period as defined in the indenture is less than 85% of the product of the closing price of our stock and the conversion rate in
effect at such time; 4) the debentures are called for redemption; or 5) upon the occurrence of certain corporate transactions as defined in
the indenture.

e The conversion rate for the new debentures will be adjusted for any cash dividends or distributions on shares of our common stock.

o We may redeem the debentures for cash equal to the principal value plus any accrued and unpalid interest at any time on or after June 13,
2008, except that between June 13, 2008 and June 12, 2009, we may not redeem the debentures unless the closing sale price of our
common stock is greater than 125% of the base conversion price (initially 125% of $61.08, or $76.35) for at least 20 trading days in a 30
consecutive trading day period ending on the trading day prior to the date of mailing our notice of redemption.

* Holders may require us to redeem the debentures for cash equal to the principal value plus any accrued and unpaid interest on June 9,
2008, 2013 and 2018.

® We are required to pay contingent interest beyond the 0.5% coupon rate at the rate of 0.5% per year on the average trading price of the
debentures over a five-day trading pericd immediately preceding the first day of the applicable six-month period, commencing with the six-
month period ending December 9, 2008, if such average trading price is greater than or equal to $1,200 per debenture (120% of the
principal amount).

Approximately $1.5 million in costs to exchange the debentures were included within selling, general and administrative expenses in
2004. In addition, to induce holders to exchange, we paid cash consideration of $1.25 per each $1,000 principal amount of original
debentures exchanged to the holders of the exchanged debentures, for a total of $0.3 million.

The conversion contingencies relating to the credit rating assigned to, and the trading price of, both the new and original debentures
compared to the product of the closing price of our common stock and the conversion rate in effect at such time, as well as the con-
tingent interest feature, represent embedded derivatives. A valuation of the fair value of these derivatives was performed upon issu-
ance of the original debentures in June of 2003 and each quarter thereafter. The fair value of these derivatives was insignificant in all
periods presented.

Capital Expenditures, Contractual Obligations and Rights, Guarantees and Other Potentially Significant Uses of Cash

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

We spent $36.7 million, $35.3 million and $39.5 million on capital expenditures in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease
in 2003 resulted from the completion of significant improvements of newly leased facilities and the implementation of new back-office
support systems in 2002. We had no material commitments for capital expenditures at December 31, 2004, However, we plan to
spend approximate’y $35.0 to $40.0 million on capital expenditures in 2005, mainly related to the creation of imagery and software
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development. The anticipated sources of funds for these capital expenditures are current cash and cash equivalent and short-term
investment balances and cash flows provided by operating activities, but could include any of the sources discussed under “Liquidity”
above.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND RIGHTS

The following table illustrates payments and receipts associated with significant, enforceable and legally binding contractual obliga-
tions that are non-cancetable without significant penalty. if a contract is cancelable with a penalty, the amount shown in the table
below is the full contractual obligation, not the penalty, as we currently intend to fulfill each of these obligations.

YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 THEREAFTER TOTAL

(In thousands)

Convertible subordinated debentures -

principal payments ! $ — 3 — % — % — % — $ 265,000 $ 265,000
Convertible subordinated debentures -

interest payments ! 1,299 1,325 1,325 1,325 1,325 17,887 24,486
Operating lease payments on facilities and

equipment leases 2 21,615 20,923 19,789 19,663 19,368 83,113 184,471
Minimum royalty guarantee payments to

contributors of imagery 3 7,222 5,137 2,292 1,350 — — 16,001
Other purchase commitments 2,619 396 — — — — 3,015

Total contractual obligations $ 32,755 $ 27,781 $ 23,406 $ 22,338 $ 20,693 $ 366,000 $ 492,973

1 Figures assume that the 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures are repaid upon maturity in 2023, which may or may not reflect future
events. The holders of the 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures may require us to redeem the debentures in 2008, 2013 and 2018,
and other circumstances could cause potential conversion of the debentures at any time. See discussion of these circumstances under
“Convertible Subordinated Debentures” within “Liquidity” above.

2 Qffsetting these operating lease payments wilt be receipts for subleased facilities in the amounts of (in thousands) $5,320, $5,289, $892 and
$51, for the years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

3 Offsetting these minimum royalty guarantee payments to contributors of imagery will be minimum guaranteed receipts from contributors in
the amounts of (in thousands) $2,250 and $1,125, for the years ending December 31, 2005 and 20086, respectively.

Payments under purchase orders, certain sponsorships, donations and other commitments that are not enforceable and legally bind-
ing contractual obligations are excluded from this table. Payments under empioyment contracts are also excluded from this table
because they do not constitute purchase commitments.

GUARANTEES

We indemnify certain customers from claims related to alleged infringements of the intellectual property rights of third parties, such
as claims arising from a photographer’s failure to secure model or property releases for an image we license. The standard terms of
these guarantees require us to defend those claims and pay related damages, if any. We mitigate this risk by contractually requiring
our contributing photographers and other imagery partners to secure all necessary mode! or property releases prior to submitting any
imagery to us, and by requiring them to indemnify us in certain circumstances in the event a claim arises in relation {o an image they
have provided. Other imagery partners are also typically required to carry insurance policies for losses related to such claims. We do
not record any liabilities for these guarantees until claims are made and we are able to assess the range of possible payments and
available recourse from our imagery partners. Historically, our exposure to such claims has been immaterial, as were our recorded
liabilities for intellectual property infringement at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

In the ordinary course of business, we also enter into certain types of agreements that contingently require us to indemnify counter-
parties against third-party claims. These may include: agreements with vendors and suppliers, under which we may indemnify them
against claims arising from our use of their products or services; agreements with customers other than those licensing images, under
which we may indemnify them against claims arising from their use of our products or services; agreements with delegates, under
which we may indemnify them against claims arising from their distribution of our products or services; real estate and equipment
leases, under which we may indemnify lessors against third-party claims relating to use of their property; agreements with directors
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and officers, under which we indemnify them to the full extent allowed by Delaware law against claims relating to their service to us;
agreements with purchasers of businesses we have sold, under which we may indemnify the purchasers against claims arising from
our operation of the businesses prior to sale; and agreements with initial purchasers and underwriters of our securities, under which
we indemnify them against claims relating to their participation in the transactions.

The nature and terms of these indemnifications vary from contract to contract, and generally a maximum obligation is not stated.
Because we are unable to estimate our potential obligation, and because management does not expect these indemnifications to have
a material adverse effect on our consclidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows, no related liabilities were recorded
at December 31, 2004 or 2003. We hold insurance policies that mitigate potential losses arising from certain indemnifications, and
historically, we have not incurred significant costs related to performance under these obligations.

Getty Images, Inc., the parent company, has guaranteed payments under lease agreements entered into by subsidiaries, which would
require payment by the parent company if the subsidiaries were to default.

OTHER POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT USES OF CASH

Our Board of Directors has authorized us to repurchase our commaon stock on the open market from time to time, not to exceed
$150.0 million. The number of shares purchased, if any, and the timing of the purchases will be based on our cash and cash equiv-
alents and short-term investment balances, the market price of our common stock and alternative investment opportunities. We have
not repurchased any shares under this plan.

In addition to possibly repurchasing our stock, management will also continue to consider selective acquisitions of businesses. During
2004, we paid $25.6 million in cash (in addition to liabilities assumed) for acquired businesses. Cash paid for business acquisitions
could increase or decrease significantly from year to year due to the timing of identifying and completing acquisitions that contribute
to the achievement of our objectives.

We have not paid or declared any dividends since inception, and our Board of Directors does not anticipate changing this practice in
the foreseeable future.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of our consolidated financial statements and the revenues and expenses reported during the period. Following
are accounting policies that management believes are most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of oper-
ations and that require management’s most difficult judgments as a result of the need to make estimates and assumptions about the
effects of matters that are inherently uncertain. These critical accounting policies have been discussed with our Audit Committee.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangiblie Assets

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price and related costs over the fair value of net assets acquired in business combinations.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually on August 31 and between annual tests in certain circumstances. When assessing impair-
ment, we must estimate the implied fair value of our goodwill. We estimate the implied fair value based on a discounted cash flow
model that involves significant assumptions and estimates, including currently enacted tax laws, our future weighted average cost of
capital, and our future financial performance. As circumstances change, it is possible that future goodwill impairment tests could
result in a loss on impairment of assets, which would be included in the determination of income from operations. At August 31,
2004, the implied fair value of our goodwill significantly exceeded its carrying value, therefore goodwill was not impaired. The balance
of goodwill at December 31, 2004 was $628.7 million.

Identifiable intangible assets are assets that do not have physical representation, but that arise from contractual or other legal rights
or are capable of being separated or divided from us and sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. Identifiable intangible
assets are generally valued based on discounted future cash flows that management estimates will be generated by the assets and are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (see “Estimated Useful Lives of Certain Long-Lived Assets” below
for more information). Identifiable intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of the asset is not recoverable and
exceeds its fair value. The discounted cash flow models we use to determine the fair value of identifiable intangible assets involve
significant assumptions and estimates, including cash flows expected to be generated by the assets, the estimated useful lives of the
assets, and our future weighted average cost of capital. As circumstances change, it is possible that future impairment tests could
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result in a loss on impairment of assets, which would be included in the determination of income from operations. No identifiable
intangible assets were impaired during the periods presented. The majority of the $13.9 million net bock value of our identifiable
intangible assets at December 31, 2004 consisted of customer lists ($6.3 million) and trademarks, trade names and copyrights ($5.9
million).

Estimated Useful Lives of Certain Long-Lived Assets

The estimated useful lives of our most significant property and equipment and identifiable intangible assets are discussed below.
Should we determine at some point in the future that the useful lives of these assets are shorter than estimated, it is possible that we
would be required to accelerate the amortization, or write off the impaired portion, of the unamortized balance of these assets.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The majority of the $112.5 million net book value of our property and equipment at December 31, 2004 consisted of image content
($52.6 million), hardware and software ($32.8 miilion) and leasehold improvements {$20.4 million).

The estimated useful lives of image content are determined based on the average life of imagery that is currently generating revenue.
Periodically, we perform analyses of populations of imagery that are representative of all of our contemporary image collections. These
analyses have shown that the average life of contemporary imagery approximates four years. The estimated useful life of archival
imagery is approximately 40 years. Historical revenue may not be indicative of future revenue, and therefore, these estimated useful
lives are inherently uncertain.

The three-year estimated usefut life of hardware and software is determined based on prior experience with related technology and
the expected future utility of the assets to us based on our operating plans. Hardware and software providers’ future support of today’s
technology and the future of technology in general are inherently uncertain. These lives are reviewed whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that revisions may be required, such as significant technological developments, the failure of a vendor to con-
tinue to support a particular version of software or changes in operating plans.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining original term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the
improvement, ranging from two to 20 years, with the majority of the net book value invested in assets with original estimated useful
lives ranging from 11 to 13 years. The estimated useful lives of improvements are determined based on our prior experience with sim-
ilar assets and the expected future utility of the assets to us based on our operating plans. Our future operating plans could change
and we may choose to, or be required to, terminate our leases and thereby abandon our leasehold improvements prior to the termi-
nation of the associated lease or the end of the otherwise estimated useful life. These lives are reviewed whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that revisions may be required, such as a planned move to or from, or remodeling of, a leased space.

IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As discussed above, the majority of the net book value of our identifiable intangible assets at December 31, 2004 consisted of
customer lists and trademarks, trade names and copyrights. We are required to evaluate the remaining useful lives of our identifiable
intangible assets each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant revisions to the remaining periods of
amortization. No revisions were determined to be necessary during 2004, Any future revisions would be applied prospectively.

The estimated useful lives of customer lists, ranging from five to seven years, are determined based on our prior experience with cus-
tomers in general and revenue we expect to generate through these specific customers in the future. Customers are free to terminate
their relationship with us at any time, our past experience with one group of customers may not be indicative of our future experience
with another group, and past revenue may not be indicative of future revenue.

The estimated useful lives of trademarks, trade names and copyrights, ranging from two to 10 years, are generally based on con-
tractual or other legal terms. The usefu! lives of these assets may terminate prior to their contractual lives due to changes in operating
plans, brand strategy, acquisition or disposition of businesses, and legal action, among other circumstances.

Income Taxes

We analyze our tax positions and record estimates in our consolidated balance sheets for potential tax liabilities relating to current and
prior tax periods. These estimates are based on interpretations of tax laws and are reviewed periodically. To the extent that actual
liabilities differ from management’s estimates, it is possible that we would be regquired to increase or decrease these liabilities through
an entry to income tax expense in our consolidated statement of income.
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Deferred income taxes, reflecting the impact of temporary differences between financial and tax reporting and of tax oss carryfor-
wards, are based on currently enacted tax taws. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of
available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified into net current and net non-current amounts, based on the balance sheet classification of the related
asset or liability. Deferred U.S. income taxes are not provided for unremitted foreign earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because we
expect those earnings will be permanently reinvested. Management currently does not plan to take advantage of the special one-time
tax deduction of 85% on repatriation of certain foreign earnings provision of the American Jobs Creation Act that was signed into law
on October 22, 2004 because it would not benefit the company.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we updated our estimated future taxable income for our U.S. operations and determined that it was
more likely than not that we would realize more of the deferred tax asset than the net balance at that date. Therefore, we reduced our
valuation allowance by $25.3 million, with $10.2 million related to net operating losses reversed through a credit to income tax
expense and $15.1 million related to employee stock option exercises reversed through a credit to additional paid-in capital. We
retained approximately $3.0 million of the valuation allowance relating to deferred tax assets generated from capital loss carryforwards
and foreign net operating losses that we may not fully recover.

As of December 31, 2004, we had net deferred tax assets of $63.0 million, net of a valuation aflowance of $6.1 million. Deferred tax
assets generated by net operating loss carryforwards and the related carryforwards at December 31, 2004 expire as illustrated in the
table below. The remaining $13.5 million in deferred tax assets relate to temporary differences between book and tax income and, to
the extent that they are not absorbed by future taxable income, they will increase future net operating losses.

Net Operating
Deferred Loss
Tax Assets  Carryforwards

(In thousands)

Between 2018 and 2021 (domestic) $ 27460 $ 71,885
Between 2005 and 2010 (foreign) 2,065 4,865
Indefinite (foreign) 19,965 66,254

Totals $ 49,430 $ 143,004

It will be necessary to generate future taxable income from our primary U.S. operations of approximately $72 miltion in order to utilize
enough of the domestic tax loss carryforwards to realize the associated net deferred tax asset. Although realization is not assured, we
believe, based on our current estimates of near-term future taxable income for our U.S. operations, that it is more likely than not that
the domestic net deferred tax assets will be realized within & reasonable period of time and well before to the expiration of the net
operating loss carryforwards between 2018 and 2021. There may be significant limitations on our ability to realize the tax benefits
attributable to these domestic tax loss carryforwards in the event of a change in ownership. With respect to the indefinite foreign tax
loss carryforwards, we believe that the associated net deferred tax assets will be realized within a reasonable period of time.

In the event that actual results differ from management'’s current expectations, the valuation allowance could materially change,
directly impacting our consolidated financial statements. We will reevaluate the valuation allowance each year upon completion of
updated estimates of taxable income for future periods. If the estimates indicate that we are unable to use all or a portion of the net
deferred tax asset balance, a greater valuation allowance will be recorded and charged to income tax expense in the period of that
determinaticn, which could be in advance of the expiration of the net operating loss carryforwards.

Foreign Exchange

Foreign exchange gains and losses that arise from changes in the exchange rates underlying foreign-currency denominated assets
and liabilities, other than long-term intercompany balances, are included in our consclidated statements of income for the periods in
which the exchange rates change. Foreign exchange gains and losses that arise from changes in the exchange rates underlying inter-
company balances that are of a long-term investment nature, for which settiement is not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable
future, are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income in our consolidated balance sheets. The future cash needs of the
parent company and each subsidiary are uncertain. Should we reclassify and settle a portion of these intercompany balances at some
time in the future due to domestic cash needs or for other purposes, these intercompany balances would be redesignated as short-
term, and all future revaluation gains and losses would be recarded in our consolidated statement of income. In addition, should we
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dispose of one of the subsidiaries with which we have a long-term intercompany balance, the accumulated other comprehensive
income or loss associated with that entity would be included in the calculation of the gain or loss on the disposal of the subsidiary.
Foreign exchange gains of $13.2 million, $26.3 million and $21.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, arose from changes in the exchange rates underlying intercompany balances deemed to be long-term in nature and
therefore were excluded from our consolidated statements of income and included in our consolidated balance sheets as a compo-
nent of accumulated other comprehensive income. Accumulated net unrealized gains on revaluation of foreign currency denominated
long-term intercompany balances were $35.5 million and $22.3 million and December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate our allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical losses as a percentage of revenue, existing economic conditions,
and specific account analysis of at-risk customers and delegates. Historical tosses and existing economic conditions may not necessa-
rily be indicative of future losses, and the impact of economic conditions on each of our customers is difficult to estimate. Should
future uncollectible amounts not reflect management's current estimates, it is possible that we would be required to increase the
allowance for doubtful accounts or write off specific uncollectible balances through bad debt expense included in selling, general and
administrative expenses in our consolidated statement of income. Our allowances for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2004 and
2003 were $11.9 million and $11.2 million, respectively. The percentage of our investment in trade receivables, net of allowances for
doubtful accounts and sales returns, more than 90 days old as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 8% and 10%, respectively.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issue No. 04-8, “The Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted
Earnings per Share”

On October 13, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ratified the consensus reached on EITF Issue No. 04-8. This
EITF issue changed the way shares of common stock that are issuable upon conversion of certain instruments are treated in the calcu-
lation of diluted earnings per share. In addition to prospective application, this EITF issue required retroactive restatement of prior
period earnings per share for all periods in which applicable securities outstanding at December 31, 2004 (the effective date of this
guidance) were outstanding. To effect the required restatements, we added all shares potentially issuable at the end of each reporting
period since the original debentures were issued June 9, 2003 to previously reported diluted weighted average shares outstanding
and added back to net income, in all applicable prior periods, an insignificant amount of after-tax interest expense associated with the
$2.0 million in original debentures that were outstanding at December 31, 2004. These restatements had no impact on our previously
reported diluted earnings per share. For purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share for the full year 2004, we also included
shares potentially issuable at the end of the reporting period to diluted weighted average shares outstanding and after-tax interest
expense on the $2.0 million original debentures, which reduced diluted earnings per share for 2004 by $0.03.

For purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share for all future periods in which the new debentures remain outstanding, we will
not include any additional shares in periods where the price of our common stock is at or below $61.08 per share at the end of the
reporting period. In periods where the price of our common stock exceeds $61.08 per share at the end of the reporting period, we will
include up to a theoretical maximum of approximately 6.9 million additional shares. The following table shows the approximate num-
ber of additional shares we would include in diluted weighted average shares outstanding at various stock prices, assuming $265.0
million of new debentures outstanding:
Ending price per share of common stock $62 $70 $8 $9 $ 100 $ 120 $ 150 $ 250 $ 1,500 $ 2,900
Additional dilutive shares outstanding

(in thousands) 129 1,106 2,052 2,788 3,377 4,260 5,144 5,884 6,768 6,853

The closing price of our common stock on March 1, 2005 was $71.83 per share.
SFAS Mo. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), which addresses the accounting for employee services received in
exchange for {a) equity instrumentis of the enterprise or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise's equity instru-
ments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. Effective July 1, 2005, this statement eliminates our ability
to account for employee stock options using the intrinsic value provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and related interpretations, and generally requires instead that we expense them using a
fair-value-based method. Accordingly, we will expense the fair value of all share-based compensation beginning July 1, 2005 to sell-
ing, general and administrative expenses over the vesting period. Management is still assessing the full impact that adoption will have
on our consolidated financial statements.
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EITF Issue No. 04-1, “Accounting for Preexisting Relationships between the Parties to a Business Combination”

On October 13, 2004, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF Issue No. 04-1, which will require us, if acquiring a business
on or after January 1, 2005, to separately account for any preexisting contractual relationships with the acquired entity. Amounts paid
in settlement of any executory contracts will be expensed, measured at the lesser of (a) the amount by which the contract is favorable
or unfavorable to market (from our perspective) or (b) any stated settlement provisions in the contract. We will recognize as an identifi-
able intangible asset apart from goodwill the reacquisition of an acquired entity’s contractual right to use our intangible assets, meas-
ured at a value not to exceed any stated reacquisition amount included in the contract. If a business combination effectively settles a
lawsuit or executory contract and that settlement results in a gain or loss for us, we will recognize a settlement gain or loss.

FASB Staff Position (FSP) 129-1, “Disclosure Requirements under FASB Statement No. 129, ‘Disclosure of Information
about Capital Structure,” Relating to Contingently Convertible Securities”

FSP 129-1 was issued April 9, 2004, The FASB staff confirmed through this FSP that the disclosure requirements of Statement No. 129
apply to all contingently convertible financial instruments, including those containing contingent conversion requirements that have not
been met and are not otherwise required to be inciuded in the computation of diluted earnings per share. Our disclosures had pre-
vicusly conformed to Statement No. 129, and therefore, adaption of this pronouncement did not have an impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

FSP 109-1, “Application of FASB Statement No. 109, ‘Accounting for Income Taxes,’ to the Tax Deduction on Qualified
Production Activities Provided by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004” and 109-2, “Accounting and Discliosure
Guidance for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004”

FSP 109-1 and 109-2 were issued by the FASB in response to the American Jobs Creation Act (the Act) that was signed into law on
October 22, 2004. The Act provides for a deduction for “qualified production activities income,” as defined in the Act, and a special
one-time tax deduction of 85% on repatriation of certain foreign earnings. At this time, management does not anticipate that these
provisions of the Act will have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to a variety of market risks, primarily related to changes in interest rates, credit ratings of issuers of our short-term
investments and foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk

The table below provides information about our financial instruments for which the fair values are sensitive to changes in interest
rates. For investments, the table presents cash flows and weighted average interest rates by stated maturity dates. For debt obliga-
tions, the table presents principal cash flows and weighted average interest rates by stated maturity dates. The respective fair values
are determined through market quotes. All instruments are denominated and presented in U.S. dollars.

STATED MATURITY DATE FAIR VALUE AT DECEMBER 31,
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total 2004 2003
(In thousands, except interest
rates)
Short-term
investments
Fixed rate $ 10,339 $48,103 $54513 $12,395 $6,128 $ 4992 $136,470 $136470 $ 86,372
Weighted average
interest rate 2.30% 3.19% 3.38% 2.87%  3.38% 5.99% 3.28% — —
Variable rate $ 5311 $ 2000 $ 1,000 $ — $1,000 $ 95941 $105252 §$105252 $ 93,006
Weighted average
interest rate 2.22% 2.36% 2.38% —  2.46% 2.09% 2.11% — —
Step-up rate $ — % — $29,837 $44,444 $9955 % — $ 84,236 $ 84,236 $ 71,187
Weighted average
interest rate — — 2.79% 2.28% 3.00% — 2.55% — —
Long-term debt
Fixed rate $ — % - § — 3 —  $ — $265,000 $265000 $409,425 $ 301,210

Weighted averege
interest rate — — — — — 0.50% 0.50% — —
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SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments at December 31, 2004 consisted of $326.0 million in available-for-sale U.S. agency securities, auction rate
securities, corporate bonds, variable rate demand notes, U.S. Treasury obligations and money market funds carried at market value
with associated unrealized holding gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive income. Available-for-sale investments with
contractual maturities beyond cne year are classified as short-term in our consolidated balance sheets because they represent the
investment of cash that is available for current operations.

LONG-TERM DEBT

See discussion of our long-term debt above within ltem 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations, Financial Condition, Liquidity, Convertible Subordinated Debentures.”

Credit Risk

In addition to interest rate risk, our short-term investments expose us to credit-related losses as they comprise debt instruments
issued by third parties. We mitigate this risk by only buying investment grade debt securities. At December 31, 2004, 88% of our
investments were in AAA rated debt instruments, and no investments were rated below A. Significant concentrations of investments at
December 31, 2004 were Fannie Mae ($62.6 million fair value), Freddie Mac {$56.8 million fair value) and Federal Home Loan Bank
($54.5 million fair value). The majority (98%) of these concentrated investments were AAA rated.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We conduct our business primarily in the U.S. and Europe, with transactions and cash flows denominated primarily in U.S. dellars,
euros and British pounds. The functional currency of the parent company is U.S. doliars, while the functional currency of each sub-
sidiary is their local currency.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The parent company and many of our subsidiaries enter into transactions that are denominated in currencies other than their func-
tiona! currencies (foreign currencies). Some of these transactions result in foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities, for
which the amount of cash to be received or paid in the future remains fixed in the foreign currency but changes from month to month
in the entity's functional currency as the exchange rate between the foreign currency and the functional currency fluctuates. The
changes in the amount of functional currency to be received or paid are transaction gains and losses, which are, with the exception of
those related to long-term intercompany balances (see below), reported in exchange gains, net in our consolidated statements of
income in the periods in which the exchange rates fluctuate.

Transaction gains and losses arising from assets and liabilities denominated in the same foreign currencies may offset each other, in
part, acting as a natural hedge. For example, if a U.S. dollar functional currency entity holds both a receivable and a payable denomi-
nated in euros, and the U.S. dollar weakens against the eurg, the entity will experience a gain on its receivable and a loss on its pay-
able. Where our foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are not naturally hedged, we may enter into forward foreign
currency exchange contracts to reduce the impact of transaction gains and losses. Our forward contracts generally: range from one to
three months in original maturity; are held by our U.S. dollar and British pound functional currency companies; and require the sale
of British pounds and euros and the purchase of functional currencies. These forward contracts are economic hedges of our
exposures but have not been designated as hedges as defined by SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” for financial reporting purposes. Gains and losses resulting from the fluctuation in the exchange rates underlying these
forward contracts are recorded in exchange gains, net in our consolidated statements of income in the periods in which the exchange
rates fluctuate.

We recognized transaction gains, including gains and losses on forward contracts, of $0.5 million, $2.1 million and $0.4 million for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities, other than long-term intercompany balances (discussed below), which are sub-
ject to transaction gains and losses each month, that were outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and were in excess of $3.0
million individually are summarized below by the functional currency of the subsidiary where the balances are recorded. Changes in
balances since December 31, 2003 are principally due to intercompany management charges and royalties, cash settlements, foreign
currency revaluation, and forward foreign exchange contract activity. All balances at December 31, 2004 are expected to settle in
2005 in the currencies listed.

SHORT-TERM FOREIGN CURRENCY BALANCES
DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003

(In thousands, except settlement rates)

British Pound Functional Currency
Receivables denominated in:
Euros $ 6,092 $ 7394
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts:
Receive British pounds/pay euros
Contract amount (€7,500 and €2,440 notional amounts at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively) $ (10,037) % (3,456)
Weighted average contractual settlement rate 0.70 0.70

Euro Functional Currency
Receivables denominated in:
British pounds $ 3,80 $ 3,796

U.S. Dollar Functional Currency
Receivables denominated in:
British pounds $ 3764 $ 8,513
Euros 4,215 4,178
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts:
Receive U.S. doliars/pay British pounds
Contract amount (£1,850 and £3,850 notional amounts at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively) $ (3,545) $ (6,869)

Weighted average contractual settlement rate 1.89 1.71
Receive U.S. dollars/pay euros
Contract amount (€12,925 and €7,565 notional amounts at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively) (17,498) (9,530)

Weighted average contractual settiement rate 1.32 1.19




27 GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2004 FORM 10-K PART Il ITEM 7A

Foreign currency denominated intercompany balances that are of a long-term investment nature are also subject to transaction gains
and losses each month, as the amount of functional currency that would be received or paid on settlement fluctuates each month as
the underlying exchange rates change. However, because settlement is not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable future, these
transaction gains and losses are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income in our consolidated balance sheets in the
same manner as translation adjustments (see discussion below). Foreign exchange gains of $13.2 miliion, $26.3 million and $21.0
million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, arose from the revaluation of such balances. Foreign
currency denominated long-term intercompany balances outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and in excess of $3.0 million
individually are summarized below by the functional currency of the books where the balances are recorded. Changes in balances
since December 31, 2003 generally represent foreign currency revaluation. With respect to the euro functional currency receivables
denominated in U.S. dollars, the decline in 2004 was due to a new long-term intercompany payable related to the funding of business
acquisitions in Germany, partially offsetting net receivables.

LONG-TERM INTERCOMPANY BALANCES
DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003

(In thousands)

Australian Dollar Functional Currency
Payables denominated in:
U.S. dollars $ (2,08 $ (2,089)

British Pound Functional Currency
Receivables denominated in:

Euros $ 15,199 $ 14,140

Australian dollars 6,679 6,434
Payables denominated in:

U.S. dollars $ (164,844) $ (164,844)

Canadian Dollar Functional Currency
Payables denominated in:
U.S. dollars $ (11,348) $ (11,348)

Euro Functional Currency

Receivables denominated in:
British pounds $ 3,645 § 3,395
U.S. dollars 3,232 5,312

Japanese Yen Functional Currency
Payables denominated in:
U.S. dollars $ (3,323) $ (3,323)

U.S. Dollar Functional Currency
Receivables denominated in:

Euros $ 38226 % 35569
Payables denominated in:
Canadian doliars (9,496) (8,842)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Our reporting currency is U.S. dollars. At the end of each month, the balance sheets and statements of income of the parent company
and each subsidiary are translated into U.S. dollars, where necessary, and then consolidated. Monthly revenues and expenses of non-
U.S. dollar functional currency subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the prior month's average daily exchange rate, while
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their assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange on the last day of the current month. Due to the use
of these different exchange rates, translation adjustments arise, which are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income in
our consolidated belance sheets.

We recognized translation adjustment losses of $2.7 million, $14.2 million and $11.0 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Accumulated translation adjustment losses at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $12.4 million and $9.7 million, respectively. Accu-
mulated translation adjustments will remain in our consclidated balance sheets until such time as we sell or otherwise dispose of a
foreign subsidiary, if ever. The accumulated translation adjustment associated with a disposed subsidiary would be included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on the disposal. Changes from 2003 to 2004 in the exchange rates used to translate the results of oper-
ations of subsidiaries with non-U.S. doliar functional currencies in 2004 resulted in increases in U.S. dollar reported revenue, selling,
general and administrative expenses and depreciation of $32.8 million, $10.0 million and $1.6 mitlion, respectively.

The following table illustrates the annual change in the foreign currency exchange rates between U.S. dollars and the currencies
shown in the tables ahove:

December 31, Annual December 31, Annual December 31, Annual
CURRENCY 2004 Change 2003  Change 2002  Change
Australian dollar 1.2812 (4)% 1.3298 (25)% 1.7775 (9%
British pound 0.5218  (7)% 0.5605 (10)% 0.6211 (10)%
Canadian dollar 1.2034  (7)% 12923 (18)% 1.5779 (1%
Euro 0.7387 ()% 0.7938 (17)% 09535 (16)%
Japanese yen 102.6800 (4)% 107.1300 (10)% 118.6000 (10)%

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

See Part IV, ltem 15(A) of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the company's disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of December
31, 2004. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of December 31, 2004,
these disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

See Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting on page F-2 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

During the last fiscal quarter of 2004, there were na changes in the company's internal control over financial reporting identified in
connection with management's evaluation of the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control aver financial reporting.
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ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION

Entry inte Material Contracts

On November 15, 2004, the Board of Directors approved (upon the earlier recommendation of the Compensation Committee) grants
of 10,000 stock options to each non-executive Director. The grants were made pursuant to the terms and conditions of our 1998
Stock Incentive Plan (the Pian) and the form of stock option agreement, which is filed with this report as Exhibit 10.35 and
incorporated herein by reference. The stock options have an exercise price of $59.85 (the market price of our common stock on
November 15, 2004), vested immediately and will expire on November 25, 2014 unless terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of
the Plan and the form of option award. We do not intend to grant any other equity-related compensation to non-executive Directors
until 2007.

PART il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated
by reference herein.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated
by reference herein.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Under the Getty Images, Inc. 1898 Stock Incentive Plan (the Plan), the Board of Directors has the discretion to grant stock options
underlying shares of common stock at the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date and other stock-based awards.
Options generally have a 10-year term and a four-year vesting schedule, with 25% vesting on the first anniversary of the grant date
and a pro rata portion vesting monthly over the remaining three years. The terms of other stock-based awards, such as restricted
stock, vary from grant to grant. :

A total of 13 million shares are authorized for issuance under the Plan. Shares under options and other stock-based awards that lapse
due to cancellation or expiration are available for re-issuance. Options become exercisable when vested and remain exercisable
through the remainder of the option term except upon termination of employment, in which case the options generally terminate 90
days after the employee’s termination date.

Below is a summary of stock-based awards outstanding and available for future issuance at December 31, 2004:

Number of

Weighted Shares

Number of Securities to Average Available

be Issued Upon Exercise Exercise for Future

PLAN CATEGORY of Stock Options Price Issuance
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 4,326,074 $ 30.50 488,656

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders 18,228 15.80 —

The 18,228 shares in the table above represent options remaining under grants made outside of the Plan in 2001 to three
non-executive members of our Board of Directors. The terms of these options are substantially identical to those granted under the
Plan.
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Of the 4,326,074 securities to be issued upon exercise of options outstanding under the Plan, 11,963 shares under options were
assumed in connection with business combinations. The weighted average exercise price of these assumed options is $18.35.

The formula used tc calculate the 488,656 shares under stock-based awards available for future issuance is the total 13 million
shares authorized for issuance under the Plan less stock-based awards granted under the Plan, not including those assumed in con-
nection with business combinations, plus options and other stock-based awards that have lapsed.

The remainder of the information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Secu-
rities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K
and is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated
by reference herein.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated
by reference herein.

PART IV

ITEM 15, EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(A) Documents Filed as Part of this Report

1. Consolidated Financial Statements (See index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page F-1 of this Report);

2. Index to Financial Statement Schedule:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedule S-1
Schedule Il §-2

All other schedules are omitted because the required information is not present or is not present in amounts sufficient to require
submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in our Consolidated Financial Statements or notes there-
to.




31

GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2004 FORM 10-K PART IV ITEM 15(B)

(B) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Getty Images, inc. (9)
3.2 Bylaws of Getty Images, Inc., as amended (14)
4.1 Specimen Common Stock certificate (10)
4.2 Indenture relating to Getty Images, Inc.’'s 0.5% Subordinated Convertible Debentures due 2023, dated June 9, 2003 (10)
4.3 First Supplemental Indenture relating to Getty images, Inc.’s 0.5% Subordinated Convertible Debentures due 2023, dated
July 30, 2003 {10)
4.4 Form of Debenture (10)
10.1 Employment Agreement between Getty Communications plc and Mark Getty dated February 9, 1998 (2)
10.2 Notice Pursuant to Employment Agreement with Mark Getty dated March 3, 2004 (12)
10.3 Employment Agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and Jonathan D. Klein, effective October 1, 2001 (5)
10.4 Employment Agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and Jonathan D. Klein, effective February 1, 2004 (11)
10.5 Employment Agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and Elizabeth J. Huebner, dated August 1, 2002 (7)
10.6 Credit Agreement, dated July 19, 2002, among Getty Images, Inc. and Bank of America, N.A. (7)
10.7 Restated Option Agreement among Getty Images, Inc., Getty Communications plc and Getty Investments L.L.C. dated
February 9, 1998 (15)
10.8 Stockholders’ Agreement among Getty Images, Inc. and certain stockholders of Getty Images, Inc. dated February 9, 1998
(15)
108 Registration Rights Agreement among Getty images, Inc. and Getty Investments L.L.C. (15)
10.10 Restated Shareholders’ Agreement among Getty Images, Inc., Getty Investments L.L.C. and the Investors named therein
dated February 9, 1998 (15)
10.11 Registration Rights Agreement dated July 3, 1996 among Getty Communications plc, Crediton Limited and October 1993
Trust and Form of Amendment among Getty Images, Inc., Getty Communications plc, Crediton Limited and October 1993
Trust (15)
10.12 Registration Rights Agreement dated July 3, 1996 among Getty Communications pic, Hambro European Ventures Limited,
Hambro Group Investments Limited, RIT Capital Partners plc and Anthony Stone and Form of Amendment among Getty
Images, Inc., Getty Communications plc and The Schwartzberg Family L.P. (15)
10.13 Indemnity between Getty images, Inc. and Getty Investments L.L.C., dated January 1938 (15)
10.14 Indemnity between Getty Images, Inc. and Getty Investments L.L.C., dated November 22, 1999 (3)
10.15 Form of Indemnity among Getty Images, Inc., Getty Communications plc and each of Mark Getty, Mark Torrance, Jonathan
Kiein, Lawrence Gould, Andrew Garb, Manny Fernandez, Christopher Sporborg, Anthony Stone and James Bailey {15)
10.16 Lease dated October 18, 1995 between Allied Dunbar Assurance plc and Tony Stone Associates Limited (1)
10.17 Lease dated October 22, 2004 between Bantry Investments Limited and Getty Images UK Limited (16)
10.18 Lease dated November 30, 1999 between the Quadrant Corporation and Getty Images, Inc. (3)
10.19 Lease dated April 1, 2000 between PhotoDisc, Inc. and The Rector, Church-Wardens and Vestrymen of Trinity Church in
the City of New York (6)
10.20 Sublease dated November 5, 2001 between PhotoDisc, Inc. and Morgan Stanley D.W. Inc. (5)
10.21 Amendment to Sublease dated November 20, 2001 between PhotoDisc, Inc. and Morgan Stanley D.W. Inc. (5)
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

10.22 First Amendment of Lease dated October 31, 2001 between PhotoDisc, Inc. and The Rector, Church-Wardens and
Vestrymen of Trinity Church in the City of New York (5)

10.23 Second Amendment of Lease dated November 20, 2001 between PhotoDisc, Inc. and The Rector, Church-Wardens and
Vestrymen of Trinity Church in the City of New York (5)

10.24 Getty Images, Inc. 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (7)
10.25* Employment Agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and Jeffrey L. Beyle, dated August 1, 2002 (9)

10.26 Registration Rights Agreement dated June 9, 2003 among Getty Images, Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and
Goldman, Sachs & Co. (10)

10.27 First Amendment to the Credit Agreement entered into as of June 27, 2003 among Getty Images, Inc. and Bank of
America N.A (10)

10.28 Second Amendment to the Credit Agreement entered into as of May 12, 2004 among Getty Images, inc. and Bank of
America N.A. (13)

10.29 Third Amendment to the Stockholders’ Agreement dated February 9, 1998 among Getty Images, Inc. and certain
stockholders of Getty Images, Inc. effective May 1, 2003 (10)

10.30* Employment Agreement between Getty images, Inc. and Bo Olofsson, dated April 29, 2003 (16)

10.31* Employment Agreement between Tony Stone Images and Lewis Blackwell, dated December 3, 1998 (16)

10.32~ Employment Agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and Nick Evans-Lombe, February 6, 2002 (16)

10.33* Addendum to Employment Agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and Nick Evans-Lombe, dated February 6, 2002 (16)
10.34+ Form of Employee Stock Option Agreement (16)

10.35* Form of Non-Executive Director Stock Option Agreement (16)

10.36* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (16)

12.1 Statement regarding computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges (16)

211 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (16)

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (16)
31.1 Section 302 Certification by Jonathan D. Kiein, CEO (16)

31.2 Section 302 Certification by Elizabeth J. Huebner, CFO (16)

32.1 Section 906 Certification by Jonathan D. Klein, CEQ (16)

32.2 Section 906 Certification by Elizabeth J. Huebner, CFO (16)

* Indicates management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

(1) Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997.

2) Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant's Amendment No. 1 to Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1997 filed April 28, 19S8.

3) incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999,

4) Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2000.

5) Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001,

6) Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the pericd ended March 31, 2000.

) Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002.
8) Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2002,
(9) Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002,
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Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2003.
Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.
Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2004.
incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the pericd ended June 30, 2004.
Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 14, 2004,

Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Amendment No. 3 to Form S-4 on Form S-4/A
filed December 23, 1997.

Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GETTY IMAGES, INC.

By: /s/ ELIZABETH J. HUEBNER

Elizabeth J. Huebner
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

March 11, 2005

We, the undersigned directors and executive officers of the Registrant, hereby severally constitute Jonathan D. Klein and Elizabeth J.
Huebner, and each of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys with full power to them and each of them to sign for us, and in our
names in the capacities indicated below, any and all amendments to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming our signatures as they may be signed by our said attorneys to any and all
amendments to said Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed on March 11, 2005, by the follow-
ing persons aon behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated below:

SIGNATURE TITLE (CAPACITY)
/s/ MARK H. GETTY Chairman and Director
Mark H. Getty

Js/ JONATHAN D. KLEIN Chief Executive Officer and Director

Jonathan D. Klein

(Principal Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
/s/ ELizABETH J. HUEBNER

Elizabeth J. Huebner

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting

Officer)
/s/ James N. BAILEY Director
James N. Bailey
/s/ ANDREwW S. GARB Director
Andrew S. Garb
/s/  DAVID LANDAU Director
David Landau
/s/  CHRISTOPHER H. SPORBORG Director
Christopher H. Sporborg
/s/ MICHAEL A. STEIN Director

Michael A, Stein
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON [INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Getty Images, Inc.’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for
the company. We assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004. In
making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment using those criteria, we determined that as of December
31, 2004, Getty Images, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting is effective.

Getty Images, Inc.’s independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K has audited management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the company's internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004 as stated in their report which appears on page F-3 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Seattle, Washington
March 10, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Getty Images, Inc.

We have completed an integrated audit of Getty Images, Inc.’s 2004 consolidated financial statements and of its internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

in our opinion, the accompanying consclidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, of stockholders’
equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Getty Images, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis-
sion (COSO0), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in /nternal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’'s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on management's assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over
financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment,
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Preeoadoidreai Copr 2L

Seattle, Washington
March 10, 2005
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenue $ 622,427 $ 523,196 $ 463,011
Cost of sates 172,684 148,343 128,080
Gross profit 449,743 374,853 334,931
Selling, general and administrative expenses 225,128 210,011 208,450
Depreciation 52,976 57,348 61,014
Amortization 4,559 4,052 14,999
Other operating (income) expenses (1,187) 173 1,043
Operating expenses 281,476 271,584 285,506
Income from operations 168,267 103,269 49,425
Interest expense (3,828) (9,765) (15,364)
Investment income 9,133 3,847 1,581
Exchange gains, net 467 2,142 445
Debt extinguishment costs — (11,777) —_
Income before income taxes 174,039 87,716 36,087
Income tax expense (67,389) (23,699) (14,619)
" Net income $ 106650 $ 64,017 $ 21,468
Earnings per share
Basic $ 181 $ 1.16 $ 0.40
Dituted 1.72 1.11 0.39
Shares used in computing earnings per share
Basic 59,006 55,412 53,084
Diluted 62,031 57,514 55,455

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

PART IV ITEM 15(A)

DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003
(In thousands, except par value)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 194,752 % 57,018
Short-term investments 325,958 250,565
Accounts receivable, net 89,272 75,781
Prepaid expenses 10,651 9,693
Deferred income taxes, net 8,335 13,206
Other current assets 2,894 1,246
Total current assets 631,862 407,508
Property and equipment, net 112,501 123,268
Goodwill 628,717 603,024
Identifiable intangible assets, net 13,874 16,615
Deferred income taxes, net 54,652 62,567
Other long-term assets 9,978 11,101
Total assets $ 1,451,584 $ 1,224,084
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 67,362 $ 64,454
Accrued expenses 42,810 42,459
Income taxes payable 3,608 8,170
Total current liabilities 113,780 115,083
Long-term debt 265,000 265,011
Other long-term liabilities 9,692 8,184
Total liabilities 388,472 388,278
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, no par value, 5,000 shares authorized; no shares issued — —
Common stock, $0.01 per share par value, 100,000 shares authorized: 60,735 issued at December
31, 2004 and 57,325 issued at December 31, 2003 607 573
Additional paid-in capital 1,210,203 1,098,249
Unearned compensation — (448)
Accumulated deficit (168,603) (275,253)
Accumulated cther comprehensive income (Note 9) 20,905 12,685
Total stockholders’ equity 1,063,112 835,806
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,451,584 §$ 1,224,084

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

PART IV

ITEM 15(A)

Number of
Shares of
Common Accumulated
Stock, Additional Other
$0.01 Common Paid-In Unearned Accumulated Comprehensive
Par Value Stock Capital Compensation Deficit Income (Loss) Total
(In thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2001 52,009 $ 520 $ 969,134 $ — $ (360,738) $ (9,416) § 599,500
Net income — — — — 21,468 — 21,468
Other comprehensive ‘ncome — — — — — 9,991 9,991
Jssuance of shares for acquisition of assets 6 — 115 — — — 115
Issuance of shares on conversion of debt 444 4 12,921 — — — 12,925
Stock options exercised 1,433 14 23,900 — — — 23,914
Accelerated stock options — — 39 — — — 39
Restricted stock grants 30 1 306 (9086) — — 1
Balance at December 31, 2002 53,922 539 1,007,015 (906)  (339,270) 575 667,953
Net income — — — — 64,017 — 64,017
Other comprehensive income — — — — — 12,110 12,110
Amortization of unearned compensation — — — 458 — — 458
Stock options exercised 3,406 34 70,832 — — — 70,866
Tax benefit from employee stock option exercises and
valuation allowance reversal — — 20,402 — — — 20,402
Restricted stock grants 3 — — — — — —
Balance at December 31, 2003 57,331 573 1,098,249 (448) (275,253) 12,685 835,806
Net income — —_ — — 106,650 — 106,650
Other comprehensive income — — —_ — — 8,220 8,220
Amortization of unearned compensation — — — 448 —_ — 448
Stock options exercised 3,404 34 73,964 — — — 73,998
Tax benefit from employee stock option exercises —_ — 37,935 — — — 37,935
Restricted stock vesting — — 55 — — — 55
Balance at December 31, 2004 60,735 $ 607 $ 1,210,203 $ — $ (168,603) $ 20,305 § 1,063,112

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 106,650 $ 64,017 21,468
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by cperating activities
Depreciation 52,976 57,348 61,014
Deferred income taxes 51,197 20,569 10,611
Amortization 4,559 4,052 14,999
Bad debt expense 3,239 4,058 6,369
Reduction of income taxes paid due tc the tax benefit from employee stock option
exercises 3,233 — —
Amortization of debt issuance costs 1,915 1,837 1,927
Debt extinguishment costs — 11,777 —
Reversal of deferred tax asset valuation allowance relating to net operating losses — (10,249) —
Other changes in long-term assets and liabilities 3,607 1,359 (107)
Changes in current assets and liabilities, net of effects of business acquisitions
Accounts receivable (16,006) (914} (4,892)
Accounts payable (530) 2,585 3,553
Accrued expenses (2,510) (6,379) (6,547)
Income taxes payable (4,039) 3,314 (5,834)
Changes in other current assets and liabilities (1,709) 5,280 2,837
Net cash provided by operating activities 202,582 158,054 105,498
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments (341,671) (274,226) (37,750)
Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale investments 263,398 66,198 15,000
Acquisition of property and equipment (36,723) (35,347) (39,514)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (25,611) (5,496) —
Acquisition of held-to-maturity investments — — (47,865)
Proceeds from the maturity of held-to-maturity investments — 20,388 7,182
Other investing activities 46 309 (346)
Net cash used in investing activities (140,561) (228,174) (103,283)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 73,998 70,866 23,814
Debt issuance and exchange costs paid (1,429) (7,965) (714)
Repayment of debt — (250,000) (35,103)
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt — 265,000 15,000
Payment of debt premium — (7,142) —
Net cash provided by financing activities 72,569 70,759 3,097
Effects of exchange rate changes 3,144 3,024 1,870
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 137,734 3,663 7,182
Cash and cash equivalents
beginning of year 57,018 53,355 46,173
end of year $ 194,752 % 57,018 53,355
Supplemental disclosures
Interest paid $ 1812 $ 11,402 13,795
Income taxes paid, including foreign taxes withheld 22,188 9,021 8,867
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Subordinated notes converted to common stock $ — 3 — 12,925
0.5% convertible subordinated debentures exchanged (263,000) — —
0.5% convertible subordinated debentures, Series B, issued 263,000 — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

noa

Getty Images, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Getty Images,” “the company,” “we”), headquartered in Seattle, Washington, is a leading pro-
vider of imagery and related services to customers worldwide. We pioneered the solution to aggregate and distribute visual content
and, since 1995, have brought many of the visual content industry’s leading image collections onto one website, gettyimages.com.

We provide high guality, relevant imagery to creative professionals at advertising agencies, graphic design firms, corporations and film
and broadcasting companies; editorial customers involved in newspaper, magazine, book, CD-ROM and online publishing; and corpo-
rate marketing departments and other business customers. We offer our products through our website and a global network of
company-operated offices and delegates.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(U.S.) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and dis-
closure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our consolidated financial statements and revenues and expenses reported
during the period. Some of the estimates and assumptions that require management's most difficult judgments are: a) the appropriate-
ness of the valuation and useful lives, if applicable, of long-lived assets, including goodwill and identifiable intangible assets; b)
determining the appropriate level of accrued income taxes and deferred tax asset valuation allowances; ¢) the designation of certain
foreign-currency denominated intercompany balances as long-term investments; and d) the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful
accounts. These judgments are difficult as matters that are inherently uncertain directly impact their valuation and accounting. Actual
results may vary from management’s estimates and assumptions.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation with no effect on previousfy
reported: net assets; net cash flows from operating, investing or financing activities; or net income.

Revision of the Classification of Certain Securities

In connection with the preparation of this report, we concluded that it was appropriate to classify our auction rate securities and varia-
ble rate demand notes as short-term investments, as opposed to their previous classification as cash and cash equivalents. Accord-
ingly, we have revised the classification to report these securities as short-term investments in our consolidated balance sheets for all
periods presented. We have also made corresponding adjustments to our consolidated statements of cash flows for all years pre-
sented to reflect the gross purchases and sales of these available-for-sale securities as investing activities rather than as a component
of cash and cash equivalents; net cash used in investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was
increased by $12.6 million, $60.3 million and $22.8 million, respectively, for activity relating to these investments. This classification
revision does not affect previously reported cash flows provided by operating activities or financing activities in our previously reported
consclidated statements of cash flows, nor does it affect our previously reported consolidated statements of income for any period.
See detail of the balances of these investments at the balance sheet dates under “Short-Term Investments” below.

Principles of Consolidation

COur consolidated financial statements and notes thereto include the accounts of Getty Images, Inc. and its subsidiaries, from the
respective dates of acquisition. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses and Derivatives

Foreign exchange transaction gains and losses are reported in exchange gains, net in our consolidated statements of income in the
period in which the exchange rates change. We utilize derivative financial instruments, namely forward foreign currency exchange
contracts, to reduce the impact of foreign currency exchange rate risks where natural hedging strategies cannot be effectively
employed. Our forward contracts are generally denominated in euros and British pounds and typically range from one to three months
in original maturity. These contracts are economic hedges of our exposures but have not been designated as hedges, as defined by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” for
financial reporting purposes. These contracts are carried at fair value, as determined by quoted market exchange rates, with gains
and losses recognized in exchange gains, net in cur consolidated statements of income in the period in which the exchange rates
change. At December 31, 2004, we held forward contracts to sell $17.5 million worth of euros and $3.5 million worth of British
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pounds in U.S. dollar functional currency sets of books and forward contracts to sell $10.0 million worth of euros in British pound
functional currency sets of books. At December 31, 2003, we held forward contracts to sell $3.5 million worth of euros and $6.9 mii-
lion worth of British pounds in U.S. dollar functional currency sets of books and forward contracts to sell $3.5 million worth of euros
in British pound functional currency sets of books. The fair values of these contracts were insignificant in all periods presented.

We do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. In general, our derivative activities do not create foreign
currency exchange rate risk because fluctuations in the value of the instruments used for economic hedging purposes are offset by
fluctuations in the value of the underlying exposures being hedged. Counterparties to derivative financial instruments expose us to
credit-related losses in the event of non-performance. However, we have entered into these instruments with creditworthy financial
institutions and consider the risk of non-performance to be unlikely. Derivatives outstanding at December 31, 2004 were entered into
primarily with Bank of America N.A.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period.
Diluted earnings per share are calculated based on the shares used to calculate basic earnings per share plus the effect of dilutive
stock options, convertible subordinated debentures and restricted stock awards.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Basic Earnings per Share

Income available to common stockholders (numerator) $ 106,650 $ 64,017 $ 21,468
Weighted average common shares outstanding (denominator) 53,006 55,412 53,084
Basic earnings per share $ 181 $ 116 $ 040

Diluted Earnings per Share

Income available to common stockholders (numerator) $ 106,6561 $ 64,0221 § 21,468
Weighted average common shares outstanding 59,006 55,412 53,084
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 2,028 2,074 2,370
0.5% convertible subordinated debentures 987 18 —
Restricted stock 10 10 1
Total weighted average common shares and dilutive securities (denominator) 62,031 57,514 55,455
Diluted earnings per share $ 172 ¢ 111 $ 0.39

1 Income available to common stockholders is higher in the diluted earnings per share czlculations for 2004 and 2003 due to adding back
interest expense (after tax) relating to $2.0 million of the 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures that were outstanding at December 31,
2004. See Note 5 for more information.

Approximately 30,455, 0.6 million and 3.1 million other common shares underlying stock options for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, are excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive.
See discussion of the number of shares relating to the convertible subordinated debentures to be included in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share in future periods under “EITF Issue No. 04-8, ‘The Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on
Diluted Earnings per Share'" within “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” below.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to cash and have maturities at the date of
acquisition of three months or less. Cash equivalents generally comprise debt instruments subject {o credit risk, including certificates
of deposit and money market funds.
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Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments consisted of the fallowing available-for-sale investments held at our consolidated balance sheet dates:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Aggregate
DECEMBER 31, 2004 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)
U.S. agency securities $ 176,546 $ 3 § (1,762) $ 174,787
Auction rate securities 87,215 — — 87,215
Corporate bonds 46,616 27 (414) 46,229
Variable rate demand notes 8,385 — — 8,385
U.S. Treasury obligations 6,030 — (50) 5,980
Money market 3,362 — — 3,362
Total short-term investments $ 328,154 $ 30 $ (2,226) $ 325,958
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Aggregate
DECEMBER 31, 2003 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)
U.S. agency securities $ 96,143 $ 263 $ (144) $ 96,262
Auction rate securities 83,040 — — 83,040
Corporate bonds 53,018 67 (130) 52,955
U.S. Treasury obligations 9,158 67 (3) 9,222
Money market 9,086 — — 9,086
Total short-term investments $ 250,445 $ 397 $ (277) $ 250,565

Available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with associated unrealized holding gains and
losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income. Investments outstanding at December 31, 2004 mature between 2005
and 2044. Investments with contractual maturities beyond one year are classified as short-term in our consolidated balance sheets
because they represent the investment of cash that is available for current operations.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, we held $95.6 million and $83.0 million, respectively, of auction rate securities and variable rate
demand notes classified as available-for-sale short-term investments. Despite the long-term nature of their stated contractual maturities,
we have the ability to quickly liquidate these securities. Our investments in these securities are recorded at cost, which approximates fair
value due to their variable interest rates, which typically reset every seven, 28 or 35 days. As a result, we had no unrealized holding gains
or losses or realized gains or losses on these investments. All income generated from these investments is recorded as interest income
within investment income in our consolidated statements of income.

Following is detail of gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2004. The majority of these unrealized losses were generated as inter-
est rates rose and the rate of return on certain of our investments remained fixed at lower rates. Management has determined that
these losses are temporary, as: the duration of the decline in the value of the investments has been short; the extent of the decline,
both in dollars and percentage of cost is not severe; and we have the ability and intent to hold the investments until we recover at
least substantially all of the cost of the investments.

In a loss position for less in a loss position 12
DECEMBER 31, 2004 than 12 months months or more Total in a loss position
Gross Gross Gross
Aggregate Fair Unrealized Aggregate Fair Unrealized Aggregate Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(In thousands)

U.S. agency securities $ 128,205 $ (1,434) $ 21,588 $ (328) $ 149,793 $ (1,762)
Corporate bonds 14,246 (118) 15,151 (296) 29,397 (414)
U.S. Treasury obligations 449 (15) 5,531 (35) 5,980 (50)

Totals $ 142,900 $ (1,567) $ 42,270 $ (659) $ 185,170 $ (2,2286)




F-11 GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2004 FORM 10-K PART IV ITEM 15(A)

Gains and losses realized on short-term investments are included in investment income in our consolidated statements of income
based on the specific identification method and were insignificant in all periods presented.

Our short-term investments comprise debt instruments issued by third parties and thus expose us to credit-related losses. We mitigate
this risk by only buying investment grade debt securities. At December 31, 2004, 88% of our investments were in AAA rated debt
instruments and no investments were rated below A. Significant concentrations of investments at December 31, 2004 were Fannie
Mae ($62.6 million fair value), Freddie Mac ($56.8 million fair value) and Federal Home Loan Bank ($54.5 million fair value). The
majority (98%) of these concentrated investments were AAA rated.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable represent trade receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns of $13.2 million and $12.1
million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The provisions for doubtful accounts recorded during 2004, 2003 and 2002
were $3.2 million, $4.1 million and $6.4 million, respectively. Estimated sales returns are recorded as a reduction of revenue and
were insignificant in all periods presented.

We estimate our allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical losses as a percentage of revenue, existing economic conditions,
and specific account analysis of at-risk customer and delegate balances. Trade receivables are written off when our internal collection
efforts have been exhausted and the account is turned over to an external collection agency. Approximately 8% of our recorded
investment in trade receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns, was more than 90 days old as of December
31, 2004, compared to 10% at December 31, 2003. We do not accrue interest on past due trade receivables, but we have the right to
do so in certain circumstances. Our allowance for sales returns is estimated based on historical returns as a percentage of revenue.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the wide variety of customers and channels through
which our products and services are sold, as well as their dispersion across many geographic areas. No single customer represented
10% or more of our total revenue in any of the periods presented.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Expenditures that extend the life, increase the capacity,
or improve the efficiency of property and equipment are capitalized, while expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred. Contemporary and archival image content consists of costs to acquire imagery from third parties and internal costs incurred
by our creative department in creating imagery, including identification of marketable subject matter, art direction, digitization and the
assignment of search terms and other pertinent information to each image. Computer software developed for internal use consists of
internal and external costs incurred during the application development stage (except training costs) of software development and
costs of upgrades or enhancements that result in additional software functionality. Costs incurred during the web application, infra-
structure, graphics and content development stages of website development are also capitalized and included below within computer
software developed for internal use.

Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets or for leasehold improvements, over
the shorter of the remaining original term of the lease or the estimated life of the related improvement. Depreciation of internal use
software was $17.2 million, $16.7 million and $15.0 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In the first quarter of 2004, we
wrote off $9.1 million of internal use software that was fully depreciated and no longer in use.

Property and equipment consisted of the following at the reported balance sheet dates:

DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003
Range of Estimated Accumulated Accumulated
Useful Lives (in years)  Gross Amount Depreciation  Gross Amount Depreciation

(In thousands, except years)

Contemporary image content 4 % 237,690 §$ 200,087 $ 212,296 $ 168,402
Computer hardware and software purchased 3 94,960 83,280 85,325 74,071
Computer software developed for internal use 3 71,407 50,192 67,903 42,788
Leasehold improvements 2-20 35,404 14,978 33,420 11,881
Furniture, fixtures and studio equipment 5 32,026 25,491 30,782 23,904
Archival image content 40 19,450 4,464 18,205 3,743
Other property and equipment 3-4 406 350 430 304

Totals $ 491,343 §$ 378,842 $ 448,361 $ 325,093
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Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price (including liabilities assumed and direct costs) over the fair value of tangible and identifi-
able intangible assets acquired in purchase business combinations. Goodwilt is reviewed for impairment annually as of August 31 and
between annual tests in certain circumstances. When assessing impairment, we must estimate the implied fair value of our goodwill.
We estimate the implied fair value based on a discounted cash flow model that involves significant assumptions and estimates, includ-
ing currently enacted tax laws, our future weighted average cost of capital, and our future financial performance. As circumstances
change, it is possible that future goodwill impairment tests could result in a loss on impairment of assets, which would be included in
the determination of income from operations. At August 31, 2004, the implied fair value of our goodwill significantly exceeded its
carrying value, therefore goodwill was not impaired.

Goodwill changed during 2004 as follows:

{In thousands)

Goodwill at December 31, 2003 $ 603,024
Acquisitions of businesses (see Note 15) 24,158
Effect of foreign currency translation adjustments 1,635
Goedwill at December 31, 2004 $ 628,717

Identifiable Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are assets that do not have physical representation, but that arise from contractual or other legal rights
or are capable of being separated or divided from the company and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged. |dentifiable
intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. We are required to reassess the remaining
useful lives of our identifiable intangible assets each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant
revisions to the remaining periods of amortization. No revisions were determined to be necessary during the periods presented. Any
future revisions would be applied prospectively.

The gross carrying amounts, related accumulated amortization and respective estimated useful lives of identifiable intangible assets
were as follows at the reported balance sheet dates:

DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003
Range of Estimated Gross  Accumulated Gross  Accumulated
Useful Lives (in years) Amount  Amortization Amount  Amortization

{In thousands, except years)

Customer lists 5-7 $ 16846 $ 10550 $ 15860 $ 7,993
Trademarks, trade names and copyrights 2-10 11,682 5,742 11,086 4,465
Other identifiable intangible assets 2-10 3,382 1,744 3,139 1,012

Totals $ 31,810 $ 18036 ¢ 30,085 $ 13,470

Amortization of identifiable intangible assets was $4.6 million, $4.1 million and $5.4 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Based on balances at December 31, 2004, amortization of identifiable intangible assets for the next five years would be as follows:

FISCAL YEAR

(In thousands}

2005 $ 4,847
2006 . 3,984
2007 1,862
2008 1,606
2009 1,141
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We have trademark registrations and applications for trademark registrations in respect of the name Getty Images and the related
logos (together, the “Getty Images Trademarks”). We and Getty Investments L.L.C. (Getty Investments) have agreed that in the event
that Getty images becomes controlied by a third party or parties not affiliated with the Getty family, Getty Investments will have the
right to call for an assignment to it, for a nominal sum, all rights to the Getty Images Trademarks. Upon such assignment, Getty
Images will have 12 months in which it will be permitted to continue to use the Getty Images Trademarks and thereafter will have to
cease such use. Mr. Mark H, Getty, our Chairman, serves as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Getty Investments, while

Mr. Jonathan D. Klein, our Chief Executive Officer, serves on the Board of Directors of Getty investments.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including identifiable intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset is not recoverable and
exceeds its fair value. The carrying value of an asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows
expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. The fair value of an asset is the amount at which the asset could
be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing parties. Fair value is determined based on quoted market prices, if avail-
able, or the best alternative information available, including prices for similar assets and the present value of expected future cash
flows of the asset. Impairments are included in other operating expenses or, if material, shown separately and included in the calcu-
lation of income from operations.

Leases

We lease facilities and equipment and sublease facilities through operating lease agreements. Operating lease rentals are charged to
selling, general and administrative expenses in our consolidated statements of income on a straight-line basis over the original term of
each lease. Our leases typically contain rent escalation clauses whereby the amount paid by us to the lessors increases each year,
while some provide rent holidays at the beginning of the lease terms and some provide stated renewal options. None of our leases
contain contingent rentals. Rent escalation causes a difference each year between the amount charged to rent expense on a straight-
line basis and the amount paid by us to the lessors. This difference is recorded to accrued expenses (the current portion) and other
long-term liabilities (the long-term portion) in our consolidated balance sheets. These balances grow during the early portions of the
lease terms and are depleted during the later portions. Rent holidays are recognized in rent expense on a straight-line basis over the
original term of each lease.

Rent expense, net of sublease income, was $18.6 million, $18.4 milliocn and $17.4 mitlion for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Sublease income recorded as an offset to rent expense was insignificant in all periods presented. See Note 6 for future minimum
payments under operating leases.

Employee Stock-Based Compensation

We apply the intrinsic value provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ-
ees” and related interpretations in accounting for employee stock-based compensation.

We do not recognize compensation expense when granting employee stock options, as we do not grant options with exercise prices
less than the market price of our common stock on the date of the grant. The only compensation expense we recognize in relation to
stock options is upon infrequent modification of certain terms of outstanding options. With respect to the periods presented, there
were minor stock option modifications resulting in compensation expense of less than $0.1 million in 2002.

We recognize unearned compensation and periodic compensation expense for restricted stock awards granted to employees.
Unearned compensation is calculated as the market price of our common stock on the date of the award less the exercise price, if
any, times the number of shares awarded, and is amortized to compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
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SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended, requires the disclosure of pro forma information as if we
had adopted the fair-value method of accounting for employee stock-based compensation. Under this method, compensation cost is
measured on all awards based on the fair value of the awards at the grant date. The pro forma effect on our net income and earnings
per share of applying the fair-value method of accounting and the accelerated method of expensing stock options provided in Finan-
cial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 28, “Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock
Option or Award Plans,” utilizing the assumptions described in Note 8. “Stock-Based Compensation,” would have been as follows:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income
As reported $ 106,650 $ 64,017 § 21,468
Add: APB No. 25 employee stock-based compensation, net of income taxes 322 302 24
Interest expense on 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures, net of income taxes ! 6 5 —
Deduct: SFAS No. 123 employee stock-based compensation, net of income taxes (8,271) (6,994) (14,242)
Pro forma net income $ 98,707 $ 57,330 $ 7,250
Basic earnings per share
As reported $ 181 $ 116 % 0.40
Pro forma 1.67 1.03 0.14
Diluted earnings per share
As reported $ 1.72 ¢ 111 % 0.39
Pro forma 1.59 0.98 0.13
Shares used in calculating pro forma earnings per share
Basic 59,006 55,412 53,084
Diluted 62,238 58,207 54,988

1 These amounts represent the adding back of interest expense (after tax) relating to $2.0 million of the 0.5% convertible subordinated
debentures outstanding at December 31, 2004. See Note 5 for more information.

See “SFAS No. 123(R), ‘Share-Based Payment'" under “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” below for a discussion of a required
change in the accounting for employee stock-based compensation in 2005.

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenue principally from licensing rights to use images that are delivered digitally over the Internet (approximately 82% of our
revenue), on CD-ROMs (approximately 5%), or in traditional analog form, principally film (approximately 5%). (n addition, our imagery is
licensed through delegates worldwide (approximately 6%). Approximately 2% of our revenue is derived from providing imagery related
services. Revenue is recognized when the four general revenue recognition criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, the price is fixed or determinable, collectibility is reasonably assured and delivery has occurred or services have been rendered.
Revenue is recorded at invoiced amounts (inciuding discounts, shipping and handling and applicable sales taxes) less an allowance for
returns, except in the case of licensing rights through delegates, where revenue is recorded at our share of invoiced amounts. Delegates
typically earn and retain 35% to 40% of the license fee, and we recognize the remaining 60% to 65% as revenue.

LICENSING TO OUR CUSTOMERS

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists at the time the customer agrees to the terms and conditions of the license agreement.
The price is also fixed or determinable at this time, as price is one of the agreed upon terms. We maintain a credit department and
credit policies that set credit limits and ascertain customer credit worthiness, thus reducing our risk of credit loss. Based on our poli-
cies and procedures, as well as our historical experience, we are able to determine that collectibility is reasonably assured prior to
recognizing revenue. These three criteria have been met at or prior to the time of delivery of the imagery, regardless of the format or
delivery medium. Delivery occurs upon making digital images available for download by the customer, upon shipment of CD-ROMs,
film in analog form and transparencies, or evenly over the subscription period. Subscription revenue is recorded as deferred revenue
within accrued expenses in our consolidated balance sheets and is amortized to revenue evenly over the subscription period. Deferred
revenue was insignificant at December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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LICENSING THROUGH DELEGATES

Delegates conduct business directly with their customers, and they ensure that each of their transactions have met all four of the
general revenue recognition criteria prior to the time they report revenue to us.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales on images licensed to our customers consists primarily of commissions owed to contributors, comprised of photogra-
phers, filmmakers and other imagery partners. These contributors are under contract with us and typically receive commissions of
20% to 50% of the total license fee, depending on the portfolio and where the imagery is licensed (licenses outside a contributor’s
home territory typically result in lower commissions). Commissions owed to contributors on delegate revenue are 30% of the total

license fee. We own a significant number of the images in our collections, and these images do not require commission payments.

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and handling billed to customers is included in revenue. Shipping and handling costs associated with purchasing inventory
are included in cost of sales.

Advertising and Marketing

We market our products and services mainly through direct mail and e-mail communications. Costs associated with these communica-
tions are charged to selling, general and administrative expenses when the communicaticns are mailed. Advertising and marketing
costs expensed in the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $9.2 million, $14.8 million and $17.4 million,
respectively. Prepaid marketing materials were insignificant at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Income Taxes

We file U.S. federal income tax returns and numerous foreign and state income tax returns. Deferred income taxes, reflecting the
impact of temporary differences between financial and tax reporting and of tax loss carryforwards, are based on currently enacted tax
laws. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified into net current
and net long-term amounts, based on the balance sheet classification of the related asset or liability.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

EMERGING ISSUES TASK FORCE (EITF) ISSUE NO. 04-8, “THE EFFECT OF CONTINGENTLY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS ON DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE"
On October 13, 2004, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF Issue No. 04-8. This EITF issue changed the way shares of
common stock that are issuable upon conversion of certain instruments are treated in the calculation of diluted earnings per share. In
addition to prospective application, this EITF issue required retroactive restatement of prior period earnings per share for all periods in
which applicable securities outstanding at December 31, 2004 (the effective date of this guidance) were outstanding. To effect the
required restatements, we added all shares potentially issuable at the end of each reporting period since the original debentures were
issued June €, 2003 to previously reported diluted weighted average shares outstanding and added back to net income in all appli-
cable prior periods an insignificant amount of after-tax interest expense associated with the $2.0 million in original debentures out-
standing at December 31, 2004. These restatements had no impact on our previously reported diluted earnings per share. For
purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share for the full year 2004, we also included shares potentially issuable at the end of the
reporting period to diluted weighted average shares outstanding and after-tax interest expense on the $2.0 million original debentures,
which reduced diluted garnings per share for 2004 by $0.03.

For purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share for all future periods in which the new debentures remain outstanding, we will
not include any additional shares in periods where the price of our common stock is at or below $61.08 per share at the end of the
reporting period. In periods where the price of our common stock exceeds $61.08 per share at the end of the reporting period, we will
include up to a theoretical maximum cf approximately 6.9 million additional shares. The following table shows the approximate num-
ber of additional shares we would include in diluted weighted average shares outstanding at various stock prices:

Ending price per share of common stock $62 3$70 $8 $90 $100 $ 120 $ 150 $ 250 $ 1,500 $ 2,900
Additional dilutive shares outstanding
(in thousands) 129 1,106 2,052 2,788 3,377 4,260 5,144 5,884 6,768 6,853

The closing price of our common stock on March 1, 2005 was $71.83 per share. See Note 5 for more information on our convertible
subordinated debentures.
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SFAS NO. 123(R), “SHARE-BASED PAYMENT”

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), which addresses the accounting for employee services received in
exchange for (a) equity instruments of the enterprise or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instru-
ments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. Effective July 1, 2005, this statement eliminates our ability

to account for employee stock options using the intrinsic value provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” and related interpretations, and generally requires instead that we expense them using a fair-value-based method. Accord-
ingly, we will expense the fair value of all share-based compensation on or after July 1, 2005 to selling, general and administrative
expenses over the vesting period. Management is still assessing the full impact that adoption will have on our consolidated financial
statements.

EITF ISSUE NO. 04-1, “"ACCOUNTING FOR PREEXISTING RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE PARTIES TO A BUSINESS COMBINATION”

On October 13, 2004, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF [ssue No. 04-1, which will require us, if acquiring a business
on or after January 1, 2005, to separately account for any preexisting contractual relationships with the acquired entity. Amounts paid
in settlement of any executory contracts will be expensed, measured at the lesser of (a) the amount by which the contract is favorable
or unfavorable to market (from our perspective) or (b) any stated settlement provisions in the contract. We will recognize as an identifi-
able intangible asset apart from goodwill the reacquisition of an acquired entity’s contractual right to use our intangible assets, meas-
ured at a value not to exceed any stated reacquisition amount included in the contract. If a business combination effectively settles a
lawsuit or executory contract and that settlement results in a gain or loss for us, we will recognize a settlement gain or loss.

FASB STAFF POSITION (FSP) 129-1, "DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER FASB STATEMENT NO. 129, '‘DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
CAPITAL STRUCTURE,” RELATING TO CONTINGENTLY CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES”

FSP 129-1 was issued Aprit 9, 2004, The FASB staff confirmed through this FSP that the disclosure requirements of Statement No.
129 apply to all contingently convertible financial instruments, including those containing contingent conversion requirements that

have not been met and are not otherwise required to be included in the computation of diluted earnings per share. Our disclosures

had previously conformed to Statement No. 129, and therefore, adoption of this pronouncement did not have an impact on our con-
solidated financial statements.

FSP 109-1, "APPLICATION OF FASB STATEMENT NO. 108, 'ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES,” TO THE TAX DEDUCTION ON QUALIFIED PRODUCTION
ACTIVITIES PROVIDED BY THE AMERICAN JOBS CREATION ACT OF 2004” AND 108-2, “ACCOUNTING AND DISCLOSURE GUIDANCE FOR THE FOREIGN
EARNINGS REPATRIATION PROVISION WITHIN THE AMERICAN JOBS CREATION ACT OF 2004”

FSP 109-1 and 109-2 were issued by the FASB in response to the American Jobs Creation Act (the Act) that was signed into law on
October 22, 2004. The Act provides for a deduction for “qualified production activities income,” as defined in the Act, and a special
one-time tax deduction of 85% on repatriation of certain foreign earnings. At this time, management does not anticipate that these
provisions of the Act will have an impact on our consclidated financial statements.

NOTE 3. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, forward foreign currency exchange contracts,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and long-term debt. Short-term investments and forward foreign currency exchange contracts
are carried at fair value as discussed above under “Short-Term Investments” and “Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses and
Derivatives” within Note 2. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their
carrying values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of our long-term debt, based on quoted market prices, was approx-
imately $409.4 million and $301.2 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These fair values were $144.4 million and
$36.2 million, respectively, higher than the carrying value of our long-term debt at those dates.




F-17 GETTY IMAGES, INC, 2004 FORM 10-K PART IV ITEM 15(A)

NOTE 4. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses at the reported balance sheet dates are summarized below, with balances representing 5% or more of total current
liabilities at either date shown separately:

DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003

{in thousands)

Accrued payroll and related costs $ 23,542 % 16,903
Accrued rent {(mainly straight-line rent (see “Leases” within Note 2)) 4,797 7,815
Other 14,471 17,741

Total accrued expenses $ 42,810 $ 42,459

NOTE 5. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-Term Debt

At December 31, 2004, $81.5 million was available to us through an $85.0 million senior revolving credit facility with a consortium of
banks. The used portion of the line of credit represented letters of credit aggregating $3.5 million. In February of 2005, we cancelied
this senior credit facility, which would have expired in July of 2005, and elected not to replace it. The letters of credit remain out-
standing and are unsecured.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following at our consolidated balance sheet dates:

DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003

(In thousands)

Convertible subordinated debentures Series B, due 2023 (0.5%) $ 263,000 $ —
Convertible subordinated debentures, due 2023 (0.5%) 2,000 265,000
Capital leases — 11

Total long-term debt $ 265,000 $ 265,011

On June 9, 2003, we issued $265.0 million in 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures (original debentures) in a private placement.
On December 16, 2004, we completed an exchange of all but $2.0 million of these original debentures for new 0.5% Series B con-
vertible subordinated debentures (new debentures). We determined this exchange to be a non-taxable transaction. Management
expects the remaining $2.0 million in original debentures to be exchanged for new debentures in the secaond quarter of 2005.

Key terms and conditions of the new debentures are:

o The principal portion of the debentures is required to be settled in cash, while the increase in value of the debentures beyond the principal,
if any, is payable in shares of our common stock. Prior to June 9, 2008, if the applicable stock price is less than or equal to the base con-
version price of $61.08, no common shares would be issued upon conversion. If the applicable stock price is greater than the base con-
version price, common shares would be issued upon conversion based on a conversion rate calculated in accordance with a pre-
determined formula. On or after June 9, 2008, the conversion rate will be fixed for the remainder of the term of the debentures at the
conversion rate effective on the date that is eight trading days prior to June 9, 2008.

e The debentures may be converted at the holder’s option only under any of the following conditions: 1) the closing price of our common
stock during a relevant measurement period as defined in the indenture is more than 120% of the base conversion price (120% of $61.08,
or $73.30); 2) the credit rating assigned to the debentures by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services is below B- or by Moody's Investors Serv-
ice is below B3 (B and B2, respectively, at December 31, 2004); 3) the trading price of the debenture during a relevant measurement
period as defined in the indenture is tess than 95% of the product of the closing price of our stock and the conversion rate in effect at such
time; 4) the debentures are called for redemption; or 5) upon the occurrence of certain corporate transactions as defined in the indenture.

s The conversion rate for the new debentures will be adjusted for any cash dividends or distributions on shares of our common stock.
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* We may redeem the debentures for cash equal to the principal value plus any accrued and unpaid interest at any time on or after June 13,
2008, except that between June 13, 2008 and June 12, 2009, we may not redeem the debentures unless the closing sale price of our
common stock is greater than 125% of the base conversion price (initially 125% of $61.08, or $76.35) for at least 20 trading days in a 30
consecutive trading day period ending on the trading day prior to the date of mailing our notice of redemption.

e Holders may require us to redeem the debentures for cash equal to the principal value plus any accrued and unpaid interest on June 9,
2008, 2013 and 2018.

e We are required to pay contingent interest beyond the 0.5% coupon rate at the rate of 0.5% per year on the average trading price of the
debentures over a five day trading period immediately preceding the first day of the applicable six-month period, commencing with the six-
month period ending December 9, 2008, if such average trading price is greater than or equal to $1,200 per debenture (120% of the
principal amount).

Approximately $1.5 million in costs to exchange the debentures are included within selling, general and administrative expenses in

2004. In addition, to induce the holders to exchange, we paid cash consideration of $1.25 per each $1,000 principal amount of origi-
nal debentures exchanged to the holders of the exchanged debentures, for a total of $0.3 million.

The conversion contingencies relating to the credit rating assigned to, and the trading price of, both the new and original debentures
compared to the product of the closing price of our common stock and the conversion rate in effect at such time, as well as the con-
tingent interest feature, represent embedded derivatives. A valuation of the fair value of these derivatives was performed upon issu-
ance of the original debentures in June of 2003 and each quarter thereafter. The fair value of these derivatives was insignificant in all
reporting periods.

NOTE 6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

We have entered into agreements that represent significant, enforceable and legally binding contractual obligations that are non-
cancelable without significant penalty. If a contract is cancelable with a penalty, the amount shown in the table below is the full con-
tractual obligation, not the penalty, as we currently intend to fulfill each of these obligations.

YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 THEREAFTER TOTAL

(In thousands)

Convertible subordinated debentures — principal

payments 1 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 —  $265,000 $ 265,000
Convertible subordinated debentures ~ interest

payments ! 1,299 1,325 1,325 1,325 1,325 17,887 24,486
Operating lease payments on facilities and

equipment leases 2 21,615 20,923 19,789 19,663 19,368 83,113 184,471
Minimum royalty guarantee payments to

contributors of imagery 3 7,222 5,137 2,292 1,350 — — 16,001
Other purchase commitments 2,619 396 — — — — 3,015

Total contractual obligations $32,755 $27,781 $23,406 $22,338 $20,693 $366,000 $492973

1 Figures assume that the 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures are repaid upon maturity in 2023, which may or may not reflect future
events. The holders of the 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures may require us to redeem the debentures in 2008, 2013 and 2018,
and other circurnstances could cause potential conversion of the debentures at any time. See discussion of these circumstances in Note 5.

2 Offsetting these operating lease payments will be receipts for subleased facilities in the amounts of (in thousands) $5,320, $5,289, $892 and
$51, for the years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

3 Offsetting these minimum royalty guarantee payments to contributors of imagery will be minimum guaranteed receipts from contributors in
the amounts of (in thousands) $2,250 and $1,125, for the years ending December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Payments under purchase orders, certain sponsorships, donations and other commitments that are not enforceable and legally bind-
ing contractual obligations are excluded from this table. Payments under employment contracts are also excluded from this table
because they do not represent purchase commitments.
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Contingencies

We indemnify certain customers from claims related to alleged infringements of the intellectual property rights of third parties, such
as claims arising from a photographer’s failure to secure model and property releases for an image we license. The standard terms of
these guarantees require us to defend those claims and pay related damages, if any. We mitigate this risk by contractually requiring
our contributing photographers and other imagery partners to secure all necessary mode! and property releases prior to submitting
any imagery to us, and by requiring them to indemnify us in certain circumstances in the event a claim arises in relation to an image
they have provided. Our imagery partners are also typically required to carry insurance policies for losses related to such claims. We
do not record any liabilities for these guarantees until claims are made and we are able to assess the range of possible payments and
available recourse from our imagery partners, as applicable. Historically, our exposure to such claims has been immaterial, as were
our recorded liabilities for intellectual property infringement at December 31, 2004 and 2003. As such, we believe the estimated fair
value of these liabilities is minimal.

In the ordinary course of business, we also enter into certain types of agreements that require us to indemnify counterparties against
third-party claims. These may include: agreements with vendors and suppliers, under which we may indemnify them against claims
arising from our use of their products or services; agreements with customers other than those licensing images, under which we may
indemnify them against claims arising from their use of our products or services; agreements with delegates, under which we may
indemnify them against claims arising from their distribution of our products or services; real estate and equipment leases, under
which we may indemnify lessors against third-party claims relating to use of their property; agreements with directors and officers,
under which we indemnify them to the full extent allowed by Delaware law against claims relating to their service to us; agreements
with purchasers of businesses we have sold, under which we may indemnify the purchasers against claims arising from our operation
of the businesses prior to sale; and agreements with initial purchasers and underwriters of our securities, under which we indemnify
them against claims relating to their participation in the transactions.

The nature and terms of these indemnification obligations vary from contract to contract, and generally a maximum obligation is not
stated. Because we are unable to estimate our potential obligation, and because we believe the estimated fair value of these liabilities
is minimal, no related liabilities are recorded at December 31, 2004 or 2003. We hold insurance policies that mitigate potential losses
arising from certain indemnifications, and historically, we have not incurred significant costs related to performance under these obli-
gations.

Getty Images, Inc., the parent company, has guaranteed payments under lease agreements entered into by subsidiaries, which would
require payment by the parent company if the subsidiaries were to default.

NOTE 7. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock

Qur Board of Directors has authorized us to repurchase our common stock on the open market from time to time, not to exceed $150
million. The number of shares purchased, if any, and the timing of the purchases will be based on the levet of cash and cash equiv-
alent and short-term investment balances, the market price of our common stock, general business conditions and alternative invest-
ment opportunities. We have not repurchased any shares under this plan.

Preferred Stock

No shares of preferred stock were issued at December 31, 2004. However, our Board of Directors is authorized to issue up to 5 mil-
lion shares of no par value preferred stock. Under the terms of our Articles of Incorporation, the Board of Directors may determine the
rights, preferences, and terms of our authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock without further action by stockholders. This
authority, together with certain provisions of our restated certificate of incorparation, may have the effect of making it more difficult for
a third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire, control of our company.

NOTE 8. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Under the Getty Images, Inc. 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (the Plan), the Board of Directors has the discretion to grant stock options
underlying shares of common stock at the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date and other stock-based awards.
Options generally have a 10-year term and a four-year vesting schedule, with 25% vesting on the first anniversary of the grant date
and a pro rata portion vesting monthly over the remaining three years. The terms of other stock-based awards, such as restricted
stock, vary from grant to grant.
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A total of 13 million shares are authorized for issuance under the Plan. Shares under options and other stock-based awards that lapse
due to cancellation or expiration are available for re-issuance. Options become exercisable when vested and remain exercisable
through the remainder of the option term except upon termination of employment, in which case the options generally terminate 90
days after the employee’s termination date. A total of 0.5 million shares were available for future issuance at December 31, 2004.

Stock Optiens

The following table presents stock option activity for the past three years:

OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Number of Exercise Number of Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price

(In thousands) (In thousands)

December 31, 2001 12,271 $21.64 7,073 $21.65
Granted 461 26.79
Exercised (1,433) 16.69
Lapsed (952) 24.10

December 31, 2002 10,347 22.47 7,744 22.41
Granted 919 36.28
Exercised (3,406) 20.81
Lapsed (407) 25.69

December 31, 2003 7,453 2475 5,734 23.12
Granted 504 55.22
Exercised (3,404) 21.72
Lapsed (212) 29.95

December 31, 2004 4,341 30.42 3,162 26.44

The following table summarizes additional information relating to options outstanding and options exercisable at December 31, 2004:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average

Number of  Contractual Exercise Number of Exercise

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES Shares Life Price Shares Price

(In thousands) (In years) (In thousands)

$ 9.88-% 2091 1,323 473 $18.33 1,215 $18.46
2092 - 29.38 617 5.80 2571 558 25.63 -

29.39- 30.32 827 5.39 30.30 815 30.31

30.33- 36.72 811 7.82 35.50 354 34.55

36.73- 59.49 749 8.49 49.73 220 45.17

59.50 - 60.09 14 9.50 60.09 — —

9.88 - 60.09 4,341 6.25 30.42 3,162 26.44
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The weighted average estimated fair values of options granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $23.09, $18.55 and $15.44,
respectively. Weighted average estimated fair values were calculated using a Black-Scholes multiple option valuation mode! with for-
feitures recognized as they occur and the following assumptions:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002
Expected share price volatility 53% 63% 74%
Risk free rate of return 2.75% 3.10% 4.82%
Expected life of option 1¥2 - 2 years from vest  1V2 years from vest 1Yz years from vest
Expected rate of dividends None None None

NOTE 9. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income consisted of the following during the periods presented:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002

(In thousands)

Net income $ 106,650 $ 64,017 $ 21,468
Net unrealized gains on revaluation of long-term intercompany balances ! 13,204 26,334 20,971
Foreign currency translation adjustment losses 2 (2,714)  (14,248) (11,030}
Net unrealized (losses) gains on short-term investments (2,316) 39 81
Deferred taxes on net unrealized gains on short-term investments 46 (15) (31

Total comprehensive income $114,870 $ 76,127 $ 31,459

1 Unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in the exchange rates underlying foreign-currency denominated intercompany balances
that are long-term in nature and for which settlement is not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable future are reported in the same manner
as translation adjustments (see footnote 2 to this table below).

2 Each reporting period, the balance sheets and statements of income of the parent company and each subsidiary are translated into U.S.
dollars, our reporting currency, and then consolidated. Monthly revenues and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars at the prior month's
average daily exchange rate, while assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange on the last day of the current
month. Due to the use of these different exchange rates, translation adjustments arise.

Accumulated other comprehensive income consisted of the following at the reported balance sheet dates:

DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003

(In thousands)

Accumulated net unrealized gains on revaluation of long-term intercompany balances $ 35470 $22,266
Accumulated foreign currency translation adjustment losses (12,369) (9,655)
Net unrealized (losses) gains on short-term investments (2,196) 120
Deferred taxes on net unrealized gains on short-term investments — (46)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income $ 20,905 $12,685

Realized gains and losses (on investments sold) transferred out of net unrealized (losses) gains on short-term investments within other
comprehensive income in the consolidated balance sheets and into investment income in the consolidated statements of income were
insignificant in all periods presented. Deferred taxes are not provided on unrealized gains and losses resulting from fluctuations in the
foreign currency exchange rates underlying foreign currency denominated long-term intercompany balances or on translation adjust-
ments because management expects that these investments in our foreign subsidiaries will be permanent.
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NOTE 10, DEBT CONVERSION

On May 13, 2002, we issued 443,839 shares of common stock for conversion of the then remaining $12.7 million of 4.75% con-
vertible subordinated notes at a price of $28.5075 per share.

NOTE 11. BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

Our chief operating decision maker uses our consolidated financial statements to assess the company’s financial performance and to
determine how to allocate resources. Therefore, we operate the company as one business segment. Our revenue is generated through
a diverse customer base, and there is no reliance on a single customer or small group of customers; no customer represented 10% or
more of our total revenue in the pericds presented. Revenue is summarized below by country based on the customer’s billing address,
with countries experiencing 5% or more of total revenue in a reportable period shown separately. Due to the impact of foreign cur-
rency translation, these figures may not clearly reflect the relative performance of the individual countries.

2004 2003 2002

% of % of % of

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
(In thousands)

United States $ 276,396 44%  $ 243,345 46%  $233,255 50%

United Kingdom 90,893 15% 69,432 13% 63,124 14%

Germany 48,119 8% 40,483 8% 33,611 7%

France 36,405 6% 30,407 6% 23,161 5%

Other foreign 170,614 27% 139,529 27% 109,860 24%

Total revenue $622,427  100% $523,196  100% $463,011  100%

Tangible long-lived assets that may not be readily removed from the countries where they are located are computer hardware, lease-
hold improvements, furniture, fixtures, studio equipment and archival imagery. These assets are shown below by country, with coun-
tries containing 5% or more of the total of these assets shown separately:

DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002

(In thousands)

United States $ 26,221 $26,180 $29,620
United Kingdom 21,221 20,100 19,713
Other foreign 3,233 3,480 3,468

Total $50,675 $49,760 $52,801

These reported revenues and long-lived assets are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties associated with doing business in for-
eign countries, including local, regional and global economic conditions, political instability, and changes in applicable tax laws.
However, we do not have significant operations or assets invested in any country that we consider highly unstatile.

NOTE 12. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We contribute to defined contribution retirement plans in which employees in the U.S. and the U.K. (the majority of our employees)
are able to participate.

We sponsor one defined contribution plan in the U.S., a 401(k) plan, in which all U.S. employees over 18 years of age may participate
at any time. We match 100% of participant contributions, up to the first 4% of each participant’s eligible compensation (including
salary, bonuses and commissions), not to exceed the Internal Revenue Service per person annual limitations.

With the exception of a limited number of legacy defined contribution plans provided to certain employees in accordance with employment
contracts, we sponsor one defined contribution plan in the U.K. Employees may participate in this plan after three months of employment
and must contribute a minimum of 2% of their salary to maintain eligibility. We contribute 5% of each participant’s salary to the plan.

Our contributions to these plans totaled $3.9 million, $3.4 million and $3.1 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and were
expensed to selling, general and administrative expenses as incurred.
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NOTE 13. INCOME TAXES
Income before income taxes is attributable to the following tax jurisdictions:
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Domestic $ 143,333 $ 78316 % 37,529
Foreign 30,706 9,400 (1,442)
Income before income taxes $ 174,039 $ 87,716 § 356,087
The components of income tax expense were as follows:
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002
(Iin thousands)
Current tax
U.S. federal and state $ (3,439) $ (1,745 $  (992)
Foreign (12,753) (12,727) (2,748)
Total current tax (16,192) (14,472) (3,740)
Deferred tax
U.S. federal and state (52,880) (18,418) (12,946)
Foreign 1,683 9,191 2,067
Total deferred tax (51,197) (9,227) (10,879)
Income tax expense $ (67,389) $ (23,699) $ (14,619)

Our recognized income tax expense differs from the amount that would result by applying the U.S. statutory rate to income before

income taxes. A reconciliation of the difference follows:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002

(In thousands)

Income tax expense based on the U.S. federal statutory rate $ (60,914) $ (30,700) $ (12,630)

State income tax expense, net of U.S. federal income tax (4,714) (2,807) (1,155)

Change in valuation allowance (838) 10,249 (317)

Other, net (923) (441) (517)
Income tax expense $ (67,389) $ (23,699) $ (14,619)
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The components of our net deferred tax assets at the reported balance sheet dates are as follows:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003

(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets related to:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 49,490 $ 49,790
Unrealized foreign exchange gains 18,102 14,444
Accrued liabilities and allowances 17,897 25,250
Depreciation 7,846 13,787
Other 5,030 1,614
Tota! deferred tax assets 98,365 104,885
Deferred tax liabilities related to:
Long-term assets (15,277) (20,972)
interest on 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures (14,009) (5,167)
Total deferred tax liabilities (29,286} (26,139)
Total deferred taxes 69,079 78,746
Less: Deferred tax assets valuation allowance (6,092) (2,973)
Net deferred tax assets $ 62,987 $ 75,773

Net tax benefits of $37.9 million, $20.4 million and zero associated with the exercise of employee stock options were recorded in
additional paid-in capital in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We had not consistently generated taxable income from our primary
U.S. operations prior to 2002, so we recorded a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets recognized related to employee
stock options exercised from the first quarter of 2002 through the third quarter of 2003. However, in the fourth quarter of 2003, we
updated our estimates of future taxable income for our U.S. operations and determined that it was more likely than not that we would
realize more of the deferred tax asset than the net balance at that date. Therefore, we reduced our valuation allowance by $25.3 mil-
lion, with $10.2 mi.lion related to net operating losses in 2001 and priar, reversed through a credit to income tax expense and $15.1
million related to employee stock option exercises in 2002 and 2003, reversed through a credit to additional paid-in capital. We
retained approximately $3.0 million of the valuation allowance relating to deferred tax assets generated from capital loss carryforwards
and foreign net operating losses that we will likely not recover. During 2004, we increased the valuation allowance to $6.1 million,
mainly due to the acquisition of a foreign company with net operating losses, as well as additional 2004 foreign losses from certain
operations and capital losses.

Deferred U.S. federal income taxes are not provided for unremitted foreign earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because management

expects those earnings will be permanently reinvested. Management currently does not plan to take advantage of the special cne-time
tax deduction of 85% on repatriation of certain foreign earnings provision of the American Jobs Creation Act that was signed into law

on October 22, 2004 because it would not benefit the company.

As of December 31, 2004, we had net deferred tax assets of $63.0 million, net of a valuation allowance of $6.1 million. The deferred
tax assets generated by net operating losses and the related carryforwards at December 31, 2004 expire as illustrated in the table
below. The remaining $13.5 million in deferred tax assets relate to temporary differences between book and tax income and, to the
extent that they are not absorbed by future taxable income, they will increase future net operating losses.

Net Operating

Deferred Loss
Tax Assets  Carryforwards

(In thousands)

Between 2018 and 2021 (domestic) $ 27460 $ 71,885
Between 2005 and 2010 (foreign) 2,065 4,865
Indefinite (foreign) 19,965 66,254

Totals $ 49,490 $ 143,004
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It will be necessary to generate future taxable income from our primary U.S. operations of approximately $72 million in order to utilize
enough of the domestic tax loss carryforwards to realize the associated net deferred tax asset. Although realization is not assured, we
believe, based on our current estimates of near-term future taxable income for our U.S. operations, that it is more likely than not that
the domestic net deferred tax assets will be realized within a reasonable period of time and well before to the expiration of the net
operating loss carryforwards between 2018 and 2021. There may be significant limitations on our ability {o realize the tax benefits
attributable to these domestic tax loss carryforwards in the event of a change in ownership. With respect to the indefinite foreign tax
loss carryforwards, we believe that the associated net deferred tax assets will be realized within a reasonable period of time.

NOTE 14. DEBT EXTINGUISHMENT COSTS

On July 10, 2003, the net proceeds from the issuance of our 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures and other funds were used to
redeem our 5.0% convertible subordinated notes, for $261.1 million in cash, including $250.0 million of principal, $7.1 million of call
premium and $4.0 million of accrued interest. In gddition, we wrote off $4.6 million of unamortized debt issuance costs associated
with these notes. The call premium and unamortized debt issuance costs comprise the debt extinguishment costs in our consolidated
statements of income and cash flows.

NOTE 15. ACQUISITIONS OF BUSINESSES

During the third quarter of 2004, we acquired Imagenet Limited, a United Kingdom-based distributor of digital publicity and market-
ing materials to media companies, for a purchase price (including liabilities assumed) of £13.9 million (approximately $25.2 million).
The portion of the purchase price allocated to goodwill was £10.6 million (approximately $19.2 million). During 2004, 2003 and 2002,
we acquired several other small businesses, mainly editorial photography businesses to expand our editorial offerings in order to meet
growing demand for this type of imagery. The total purchase price allocated to goodwill for the small acquisitions in 2004 was approx-
imately $5.0 million in the aggregate.

All acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the results of operations since the
respective dates of acquisition are included in our consolidated results. None of the acquisitions were material, individually or in the
aggregate, to the company as a whole and, therefore, pro forma financial information is not presented.

NOTE 16. SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share amounts}
Year ended December 31, 2004
Revenue $ 156,512 $ 150,327 $ 153,488 % 162,100
Gross profit 112,706 108,538 111,144 117,355
Income from operations 42,942 39,843 41,713 43,770
Income before income taxes 42,810 40,927 43,624 46,579
Net income 26,086 25,152 26,732 28,681
Basic earnings per share 0.45 0.43 0.45 0.48
Diluted earnings per share 0.43 0.41 0.44 0.46
Year ended December 31, 2003
Revenue $ 130,317 $127,722 $ 130,775 $ 134,383
Gross profit 93,002 91,399 93,713 96,740
Income from operations 23,929 23,779 27,158 28,403
Income before income taxes 21,693 21,510 15,5801 28,933
Net income 13,230 13,166 9,4421 28,1792
Basic earnings per share 0.25 0.24 0.171! 0.502
Diluted earnings per share 0.23 0.23 0.161 0.482

1 The third quarter of 2003 includes debt extinguishment costs of $11.8 million before tax and $7.2 million after tax.
2 The fourth quarter of 2003 includes a deferred tax asset valuation allowance reversal of $10.2 million.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT
SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors of Getty Images, Inc.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements, of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting and of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting referred to in our report dated March 10, 2005 appearing
on page F-3 of this Form 10-K also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed in Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In
our opinion, this financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in
conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.

Preridedoear Coprs L7

Seattle, Washington
March 10, 2005
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SCHEDULE !l - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

December 31,  Additions Other December 31, Additions Other December 31,  Additions Other December 31,
2001 Expensed  Additions Deductions 2002 Expensed Additions  Deductions 2003  Expensed Additions  Deductions 2004
{In thousands)
Allowance for doubtful
accounts and sales
returns $ 20,895 6,369 — (l4,661)t $ 12,603 4,651 — (5,122)1 $ 12,132 3,682 6882 (3,257)!'$ 13,245
Deferred tax asset
valuation allowance $ 12,844 317 43133 — $ 17474 — 10,8183 (25319)* $ 2,973 838 2,2815 — $ 6092

1 Amounts in all years represent balances written off, net of amounts recovered that had previously been written off, and foreign currency
translation adjustments. The significant write offs in 2002 represent amounts that were reserved in prior years that could not be written off
due to the limited functionality of certain legacy financial systems. The process of writing off these reserved balances began in 2002 when
these systems were replaced.

2 This amount represents allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns of businesses acquired.

3 This amount relates to employee stock option exercises in the U.S. and U.K.

4 This amount represents a decrease in the valuation allowance relating to employee stock option exercises ($15,070) and net operating losses
($10,249). See Note 13 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, “Income Taxes," for further information.

5 This amount relates to net operating loss carryforwards of a company we acquired in 2004 that had not generated profits in years pricr to
acquisition.
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